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CORPORATE PROFILE
AFBEN

Affluent Partners Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) are principally engaged in purchasing, processing,
designing, production and wholesale distribution of pearls and jewellery
products.

The Company was spun-off from Man Sang International Limited and listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) by way of introduction on 17 October 2014 under the stock
code of 1466. In March 2017, the name of the Company was changed
from Man Sang Jewellery Holdings Limited to Affluent Partners Holdings
Limited.

The Group is one of the world’s largest merchants, purchasers and
processors of pearls. The processing and production of pearls and jewellery
are conducted at the Group’s production facilities in Shenzhen, the
People’s Republic of China.

During the current financial year, the Group has commenced to engage
in the operation of strategic investment and financial services segment,
with objectives including investment in stock, bonds and other forms of
securities and other potential investment opportunities, and also money
lending business.

The Group will continue to explore new business opportunities so arising
in order to maximise shareholders’ value in the coming future.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

KEY FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
BEUBRA

Consolidated Income Statement

Year ended 31 March
BZE3ASIHILEE

Revenue (HK$'000) WA (FHET) 212,232 210,019 2213 1.1%
Gross profit (HK$'000) ERN(FHBIT) 54,151 59,196 (5,045) (8.5)%
Loss before income tax (HK$'000) BRFTS T AT ER (T TT) (24,282) (10,858) (13,424) 123.6%
Loss for the year attributable AEENRIIRIELEE
to equity holders of the Company (F%&L)
(HKS'000) (23,886) (10,940) (12,946) 118.3%
Basic and diluted loss FRREAR R EEEE (B(L)
per share (HK cent) (7.48) (4.05) (3.43) 84.7%
As at 31 March
MA3A31H
Consolidated Balance Sheet HEEERER 2017 2016 Change
20174 20165F =10 %
Net assets (HK$'000) BEFE(FET) 290,085 313,657 (23,572) (7.5)%
Cash and cash equivalents (HK$'000) R4 RERIRE (THET) 54,342 163,931 (109,589) (66.9)%
Shareholders’ equity (HK$'000) xRz (FATT) 290,085 313,657 (23,572) (7.5)%
KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS
FEMBLER
2017 2016 Change
20175 20165 25
Gross profit margin® FEFZR0 25.5% 28.2% (2.7) percentage points
NEE D
Return on equity® f& R & & BlHRe (8.2)% (3.5)% (4.7) percentage points
@7 fEE| D2
Current ratio (times)® BN R (f5)0 12.7 129
Gearing ratio® BARBELL RO - -

Q) Gross profit margin represents gross profit divided by revenue of the Group.

) Return on equity is defined as the ratio of loss attributable to equity holders of the
Company to total equity attributable to equity holders of the Company.

(3) Current ratio is defined as the ratio of total current assets to total current liabilities.

(4) Gearing ratio represents total borrowing, including current and non-current portion,
divided by total equity.

EFREAEEEFBRIAMA o
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HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR 2016/2017
2016/2017F KREHE

3-6June 2016 2016F6 H3H ZE6H
Participated in JCK Show — Las Vegas, the United States of America S CKEBIRL AT 4 INET A B R
23-26 June 2016 2016F6 H23 A E26H
Participated in June Hong Kong Jewellery & Gem Fair QENABRBUBEERREED
13-17 September 2016 2016F9F13H=17H
Participated in September Hong Kong Jewellery & Gem Fair ZENABBURBEEERED
13-18 September 2016 2016F9H 13HZE18H
Participated in International Gem & Jewellery Festival SHBRE L RIREL

sl
et bl T

Photo taken in Hong Kong International Jewellery Show

HEREBBERRER
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Highlights of the-Year 2016/2017(Continued)
2016/2017F REWE (&)

Photo taken in Hong Kong International Jewellery Show

HENEEERRER

30 October — 1 November 2016 20165F 10308 E11A1H8
Participated in JA Special Delivery New York S NRYIRE R

24-27 November 2016 2016511 A24R E278
Participated in JMA Hong Kong 2016 SEF R REREREZ2016
23-26 January 2017 201751 H23H £26H

Participated in 28th International Jewellery Tokyo SLEARRRE2EERKRER
2-6 March 2017 20173 2B ZE6H

Participated in Hong Kong International Show 2017 S HEBERIAERE2017

23-30 March 2017 20173 A23HE30H

Participated in Baselworld 2017 — World Watch & Jewellery Show Z2EMOERIKEFE2017
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
FEHRE

Affluent Partners Holdings Limited $2E =R ER A 7

On behalf of the board of directors, | am pleased to present the results of
Affluent Partners Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2017 ("FY17").

PERFORMANCE

This year was a sharp transformation for the Company. During the year, the
Company achieved business diversification, and established new business
segment — strategic investment and financial services segment. This
segment has been in operation, and its objectives include investments in
the stock market, bonds and other forms of securities, which may include
long-term and short-term investments in listed securities in Hong Kong
and other recognised overseas securities markets as well as other potential
investment opportunities.

During the year, the Company acquired the entire issued share capital
of a company, which holding a money lenders licence under the Money
Lenders Ordinance (Cap. 163, the Laws of Hong Kong). Meanwhile, we have
also completed the acquisition in 33% of the entire issued share capital of
a Korean beverage company, Dellos Group Limited (“Dellos”) in May 2017.
Products of Dellos are sold in Korea and over 40 countries around the
globe, spanning the European Union, Russia, Middle Asia, South America
and Africa. Dellos jointly develops the nano water-soluble technology with
an independent third party, which could be applied to the manufacturing
process of beverages. The Group considers that Dellos has a bright
prospect.

In order to reflect the brand new business direction of the Group, since
March 2017, the English name of the Company has been changed from
“Man Sang Jewellery Holdings Limited” to “Affluent Partners Holdings
Limited” and “$8 B2 A8 AR A )" has been adopted as its Chinese name.

AANBHRKREFE2REFERAR AR
RE D REMBEAT (SRR AKEDEE2017F3
A3 BIEFE (20176 BRFE D ES -
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NEAM R EINES TS EhE AR R EH
BRE  UREMBEREHKS) -

FR - AAWEBT —RXAANEDEEETR
Ko ZRARBEBRB LD E163E HEAK
PIBETHREMER - B - BPIR2017F5 878
B 5% A Uk B8 38 B 88 & A 7] Dellos Group Limited
([Dellos 1) 2 #BE B 1 TAX AN #933% © DellosiE T 2
MITHEE R 2HE40Z EARR - BIERE -
AR - FZE - EEMMIEMN  WERBIFE=
AR EMRIA RN  ZETTEAR
KmHEERIE - & [E 7R B Dellos#) B & 7] B -

RRMEEBEBO AR - B2017F3 A
B AR AR X & 8 B [ Man Sang Jewellery
Holdings Limited J 8 25 & Affluent Partners Holdings
Limited ] » RN XA BEERER AR



PROSPECTS

Looking forward, the strategic investment and financial services segment
will expectedly diversify the income streams of the Group, and generate
additional investment returns on the available funds of the Company from
time to time. We expect that the segment will be the growth driver of the
Company, and will actively make continuous efforts to find appropriate
investment projects in the future.

The Group will further use its resources as a listed company to add value for
the acquisition project, so as to increase its profitability and return. Dellos
will continue to actively expand its distribution network, especially the local
sales network in Korea, and is expected to seek listing of its shares on the
Stock Exchange or any other qualified stock exchange in the medium term.

Meanwhile, the Group will continue developing the mature pearls and
jewellery business, actively participating in various important jewellery &
gem fairs around the world, and expanding into a diversified customer
base.

APPRECIATION

I 'would like to take this opportunity to express my heartfelt gratitude to
all our shareholders, customers and other business partners for their long-
term attention and support to the Group over the years. | would also like
to thank the senior management team and all staff of the Group for their
dedication and hard work to the Group during the past year.

Lan Zhi Cheng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 August 2017
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BERENWR D

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Affluent Partners Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) is pleased to report the results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2017
("FY17"). During FY17, the consolidated loss attributable to equity holders
of the Company was HK$23.9 million (year ended 31 March 2016 ("FY16"):
HK$10.9 million), representing an increase of 118.3% as compared with
that in FY16. Basic loss per share was 7.48 HK cents (FY16: 4.05 HK cents),
representing an increase of 84.7% as compared with that in FY16.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Pearls and Jewellery Business Segment

The Group is one of the world’s largest merchants, purchasers and
processors of pearls, with its customers spanning through 50 countries and
regions around the globe. Leveraging its own competitive advantages,
which include the close and stable relationship with customers and
suppliers, the Group has offered vertically integrated product chain and
built a renowned reputation in the pearl and jewellery industry.

The global market sentiment for pearl and fine jewellery continue to
be weak during the year which had an adverse impact on demand of
the Group's pearl and jewellery products. There was also a weakening
consumption sentiment in the PRC and Hong Kong which reduced the
sales contribution from our prestigious showroom (“VIP showroom”) in our
Hong Kong headquarters (FY17: HK$5.0 million; FY16: HK$14.4 million). For
FY17, the return on capital of pearls and jewellery products was (5.4)% (FY16:
(4.2)%).

The Group will continue to strictly control costs and improve operation
efficiency and productivity in a bid to stay competitive. The Group will
continue to actively participate in various important jewellery & gem fairs
around the world in order to expand into a diversified customer base.

MR RE

BEERERAR(ARENESS([E5g))
RAZH|ARBRERBRR(HEIAEE])EH
E2017F3A31BIEFE (2017 FHBFE ) 2 %
E o R2017FHRFEEAN » AR RIREELEE
[E518 423,900,000 7T (B £ 2016F3 A31H IEFE
(M2016 5B EE |) - 10,900,00087T) » #2016
FHHFE EFA1183% - FIREAREE 74881
(2016F I FE : 405781) + BR016FMERFE
F+84.7% °

E 3 E)-

DHRRKREXEE DB

AEBRURZANDREZE  BIRRBERH &

NIz~ FEPBEMEROERK LR - /&

RESNHEFEY  ERERPMMERTIIM

RENBEER AEBEHELTEESEANERR
5 WERPURURBERARUESBE -

FR - RBEZEGRKBEMSFER - UEA
EEERRKREERBTRNZEHE - dEKE
BB EMIKKE  MEBEBEIHRERCEER
NWE(TEERINE]) 2 HETRERZZ(2017
FEHRFZ + 5000000 7T © 2016 FFHFE :
14,400,000/ 7T ) » 2017 F R FE 2L KK EE
MATABERZERAEGCH% (2016 FHBFEE
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEEIREOM(E)

Strategic Investment and Financial Services Segment

In order to capture new business and development opportunities, the
Group has established a strategic investment and financial services
segment, principally engaging in investments in the stock market, bonds
and other forms of securities, which may include long-term and short-
term investments in listed securities in Hong Kong and other recognised
overseas securities markets as well as other potential investment
opportunities. The segment has been actively exploring suitable merging
and acquisition opportunities in European and Asian regions, leveraging
the Company’s platform and resources as a listed company to add value
for investment projects and enhancing its profitability and returns.

Currently, the Group has completed the acquisition of a company which
holds a money lenders licence in Hong Kong. The Group has also acquired
33% of the entire issued share capital of a Korean beverage company,
Dellos Group Limited. Dellos Group Limited under the established brand
of “Dellos” principally engages in the manufacturing, sale and distribution
of fruit juice and other beverage products with its products selling in
Korea and over 50 counties and regions around the globe, spanning the
European Union, Russia, Middle East, South America and Africa. Dellos
Group Limited jointly develops the nano water-soluble technology with
an independent third party, which could be applied to the manufacturing
process of beverage for easily digested and absorbed by human body. As
consumers have been increasingly concerned about healthy beverage, the
global demand for “Dellos” beverage products with application of nano
technology is expected to surge. Meanwhile, according to its past and
estimated financial performance, Dellos Group Limited might seek listing
of its shares on the Stock Exchange or any other qualified stock exchange
in the medium term.

The strategic investment and financial service segment of the Group will
continue to look for new investing opportunities and exercise due care in
examining its risks and returns so as to diverse business lines and enhance
shareholders’ values.

RBERERMERE DS
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEEN AT (E)

INVESTMENT REVIEW RERRE
During FY17, the Group acquired Hong Kong listed equities and unlisted R201T7FHREE @ AEBBAFTELTRER
fund at the aggregate acquisition cost of HK$44,130,000. Return on FELEMES - BUEEK AN R44,130,0008 7T © 2017
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss for FY17 is (3.1)% (2016: FHPHFE  BRATFEFABRERZEREEY
Nil). Bl#RA(3.1)%(2016FHEFE « &)
Movements in the Hong Kong listed equities and unlisted fund held by the R17FHRFE  BAKERECEB LMK
Group during FY17 are as follows: ERFLMES2EFBHOT :
2017
HK$’000
FHET
Carrying amount at beginning of year REY 2 REE -
Acquisitions A 44,130
Loss arising on change in fair value of financial assets BRATEFABRRZEREEATE
at fair value through profit or loss FE)ELE  EE (1,356)

Carrying amount at end of year RELKL 7 BREE 42,774
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEEIREOM(E)

Details of the Hong Kong listed equities and unlisted fund held by the
Group at 31 March 2017 are as follows:

Number of
shares held at
31 March 2017

R20175
3A31H
BEzRHEE

BRLTRRAR
ERRRERZRERAF

Name of Hong Kong listed equities
Beijing Gas Blue Sky Holdings Limited

Fair value at
31 March 2017

R201745E
3A31H
AN
HK$'000
BT

Fair value

as compared
to the
consolidated
total assets

of the Group at
31 March 2017

AVFEERER
R201745
3A31H
GRBE
BEzLE

R2017F3 A3 BAAEERE2BEELTRER
FELEMESZFHEBOT

Loss
arising on
change in
fair value

recognised in
the year ended
31 March 2017
BZ2017%F
3AMHLEE
ERIAAYE
BEELZ
BB

HK$'000

THT

(Stock code: 6328) (BRAAHR5R « 6828) 25,800,000 14,964 4.8% -
China Baoli Technologies Holdings Limited ~ B E HEIERER A7)
(Stock code: 164) (DR - 164) 66,000,000 14,190 45% 726
Name of unlisted fund FLHESER
Quantum Growth Fund Quantum Growth Fund 1,371,599 13,620 4.4% 630
42,774 1,356

During the year, the Group has newly commenced money lending
business which generated interest income on loans of HK$1,900,000.
The Group granted new loans in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$45,000,000 to its customers. Throughout the reporting period, the
directors has continuously assessed the collectability of loans receivable.
As there was no objective evidence that the Group would not be able
to collect all amounts due, no impairment loss on loans receivable was
recognised. At 31 March 2017, the Group's loans receivable together with
accrued interest receivable amounted to HK$46,878,000 (2016: Nil). Return
on loans and interest receivables for FY17 was 4.2% (FY16: Nil). Subsequent
to the reporting period, the Company has received loans interest of
HK$4,224,000, which is timely according to payment schedule.

FN - AEBZHFAREBEEBEEZERAE
WA £1,900,00078 7T » AEBAERFETAE
4R EE /450000008 T2 FTE K - REREHA -
BEEHEFHERERZATREEE - AR
EREBEERANEB G EAWRE TR ER
1B M EERERE R ZRERIE - 120176
3A31E  AEERKEFEREREFE A
46,878,000/ 7T (20165 + &) 2017 F MR FE -
B E R R F B 2 B A42%(2016FHRFE
) - REERR  ARAIBIRERERRERK
E14,224,0008 T2 BEFFE. °



FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group currently is principally engaged in purchasing, processing,
designing, production and wholesale distribution of pearls and jewellery
products.

Revenue and Gross Profit

Revenue increased slightly during the year (FY17: HK$212.2 million; FY16:
HK$210.0 million), comprised sales of pearl and jewellery of HK$210.1
million (FY16: HK$210.0 million) and interest income on strategic
investment and financial services of HK$2.1 million (FY16: Nil), mainly as a
result of the new income stream from money lending business.

Gross profit decreased by HK$5.0 million or 8.5% to HK$54.2 million (FY16:
HKS$59.2 million). The decrease was mainly due to a decrease in gross profit
margin during FY17 (FY17: 25.5%; FY16: 28.2%). The decrease in gross
profit margin was mainly attributable to the deeper discount offered to
customers and the decrease in retail sales from the VIP showroom during
the year.

Selling and Administrative Expenses

(the “S&A expenses”)

S&A expenses mainly comprised selling expenses of HK$8.3 million (FY16:
HK$9.3 million) and administrative expenses of HK$69.2 million (FY16:
HK$69.0 million). S&A expenses decreased slightly by HK$0.8 million or 1.0%
to HKS77.5 million (FY16: HKS78.3 million) in FY17, as a result of cost control
measures deployed by the Group which reduced advertising expenses
and administrative expenses, netted off by the increase in expenses of the
newly established business segment during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEEIREOM(E)

Loss Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company

The loss attributable to equity holders of the Company increased by
HK$13.0 million or 118.3% to HK$23.9 million (FY16: HK$10.9 million) in
FY17 mainly due to the decrease of gross profit of the Group.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

During the year, the Group funded its operations through a combination
of cash generated from operations and equity attributable to owners of
the Company. As at 31 March 2017, the Group's total equity was HK$290.1
million (2016: HK$313.7 million), representing a decrease of 7.5% from last
year.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of HK$54.3
million (2016: HK$163.9 million). Cash and cash equivalents were mainly
denominated in United States dollars, Hong Kong dollars and Chinese
Renminbi. The Group's working capital or net current assets were HK$271.9
million (2016: HK$304.0 million). The current ratio, represented by the
current assets divided by the current liabilities, was 12.7 (2016: 12.9).

As at 31 March 2017, the Group did not have any available banking
facilities (2016: HK$85.0 million) or unused banking facilities (2016: HK$85.0
million). With the available cash and cash equivalents and cash generated
from operations, the Group has adequate financial resources to meet
the anticipated future liquidity requirements and capital expenditure
commitment.

Capital structure
There were no movements in either the Company’s authorised or issued
share capital during the year.

AATBRRELEE

AR A% R E 1R B 1B L FF 13,000,000 7 JT 8k
1183% * 20174 B B [ 2 23,900,000/ 7T (2016
FEIHAETE 1 1090000058 7C) » TEBHNAEE
ERMTE »

FR - AEERBLENERESAARRES
AELMEGAELCEIREESD - 1R2017F3A31
B - K& B 44 5290,100,00058 7T (2016 4F ¢
313,700,000/ 7T) * BAF T#7.5% °

B2017F3831H > AEBEERe SRR S
54,300,000/ 7T (2016 4F : 163,900,000/ 7C) ° F&
LERBEEENUETL - BLLAREE -
REBEEESKFRBE E 271,900,000/ 7T
(20164F : 304,000,000/87C) ° BN LK (BIRENE
ERARESBE) B12715(20164F : 12.9fF) °

20173318 » NEEWEE(AJIRITIRE 2 E
F{=ZE%EE (20164 : 85,000,000/ 7C) M ABE 2
IRITIEEHEEZ (20164 © 85,000,000/ 7T) ° 5t K&
BReRERRELBERLEMERE  A4%H
BEREZHEERENARRELZRBESHT K
ME RS G o

BEXEE
ARFZEERDITRARERBELD -



Material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries
The Group did not have any material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries
during FY17.

Exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates

The Group principally operates its businesses in Hong Kong and the PRC.
The Group is exposed to foreign exchange fluctuations from various
currencies, such as United States dollars and Renminbi, which were the
major foreign currencies transacted by the Group during FY16 and FY17.

Since Hong Kong dollars remain pegged to the United States dollars
within a defined range, the Group is not exposed to any significant foreign
exchange risk against the United States dollars. The Group has subsidiaries
operating in the PRC, in which most of their transactions, including
revenue, expenses and other financing activities, are denominated in
Renminbi.

The Group manages its foreign currency risk against other currencies by
closely monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rates and may use
hedging derivative, such as foreign currency forward contract, to manage
its foreign currency risk as appropriate.

Human Resources

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had a total workforce of 384 (2016:
472), of whom 49 (2016: 50) were based in Hong Kong. The total staff
cost, including directors” emoluments and mandatory provident fund,
was approximately HK$56.3 million (2016: HK$62.6 million). Employees
were remunerated on the basis of their performance and experience.
Remuneration packages, including salary and year-end discretionary
bonus, were determined by reference to market conditions and individual
performance.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEEIREOM(E)

Key performance indicators
The Company has defined the following key performance indicators ("KPIs")
which are closely aligned with the performance of the Group.

Revenue Wi

Loss for the year attributable to owners NCIEYNNGIE 2PN
of the Company FEfhIE1E

Equity attributable to owners of ALDEHEE NGRS
the Company

Return on financial assets at fair value BAEFABRKR L
through profit or loss EEEE B

Return on loans and interest receivables FEMEFR R F B 2 B3R
Return on capital employed in sale of pearls  $HEZ K RIKEEm
and jewellery products FTR& 22 B3R

Notes:

Q) Return on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss includes gains and losses
arising on change in fair value, gains and losses on disposal and dividend income. It
is measured as a percentage against opening fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and total investments made at cost.

(2) Return on loans and interest receivables includes interest income and impairment loss
recognised. It is measured as a percentage against average loans receivable (excluding
accrued interest receivables).

(3) Return on capital employed in sale of pearls and jewellery products represents segment
profit or loss from sale of pearls and jewellery products business divided by average
capital employed and is measured as a percentage.

Commentary on the performance of the Group against each of these KPIs is
set out in “Business Review” and “Investment Review” above.

These KPIs are reviewed regularly and amended occasionally to correspond
with the changing mix of the Group's principal activities.

IERRER
ARFEHHA TEAEERRARE — R B
RRER(EBRBURRD) -

Notes

Byt

For the year ended 31 March
BZ3A3IBLEE

2017 2016
HK$212,232,0005& 7T HK$210,019,0007% 7T

HK$(23,886,000)/8 T  HK$(10,940,000)/ 7T
HK$290,085,0005% 7T HK$313,657,0007% 7T

(3.1)% =
4.2% =

(5.4)% (4.2)%

BATEMABRRZEREEZMBREEATE
BPELZRENER HWEFHEZWERBERN
RBSWA - FFHEZAD AR FER ABGER
ZERAEZ P ATERIERATEZ BIRE -

FEWE R EFE 2 B8 AR S RA R BRI
BEEE - FFEZAD LR TFHREER(TEERK
FEEHAE)

HEDUMAEERMAER 2 DMEHEZ KK
KEERZ A BAFIKEERATHMAER - I
SEABEOL -

IARERR 2 ETEXRBIRF RN LX
[ X5 OIEE M EER ] -

ZEETBRARTETE BRI L TEIERT - Ui
BAKETHES  TEEBAES -



SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's management reviews the Group’s internal reporting in order
to assess performance and allocate resources. They have determined
the operating segments based on these reports. The Group is principally
engaged in purchasing, processing, designing, production and wholesale
distribution of pearls and jewellery products, and operation of strategic
investment and financial services. Accordingly, the Group has identified
two operating segment — pearls and jewellery operating segment strategic
investment and financial services operating segment.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

A summary of the principal risks and uncertainties which may impact the
Group's financial conditions, results of operations or future performance
and how the Group mitigates these risks is set out below.

This summary should not be regarded as a complete and comprehensive
statement of all potential risks and uncertainties faced by the Group, but
rather those risks which the Group currently believes may have a significant
impact on the Group's performance and future prospects.

Principal risks Description

TERR AFS
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BEEN WL (E)

TEEFR

AEBERERNRES Y NBRENFERE
BAKRER - REREZSHERTLENH -
AEEIBRELHIAEERZFE - MT -
Bt AERMEHE  RERRE RS BRY
#iE - At AEEEREAEEES BB
RIE B BRI E RYBRE LB -

FERRRIARERE

AR EAKE MMM - BEEBESRKK
BT B2RRBETHAREHE RAEENAE
FRZERBREMN T o

S E TR H AR E R 2 A EERR
RAHFBARERZ TBEF R - EARNSERRE
E FRR A REE AN R B 2 R SRRATR K
BEAYE -

Mitigating actions

PRI

Strategic risk is the risk that medium and long-
term profitability and/or reputation of the
Group could be adversely impacted by the
failure either to identify or implement the
correct strategy, or to react appropriately to
changes in the business environment.

SRS 1 R e A5 [ oK BE 8k Bl = . ot L e SR S
FUHEERFFEEHEEREMEAE
B E R REAAFIGE T RSB EK
M2z Ek

Strategic risk
RE MR

Economic risk is the risk of any downturn in
economic conditions which could impact
the Group's performance through higher bad
debts as a result of customers' inability to repay
loans and lower asset values.
BERRREALERREZ TTRAR - %
EEBEFENERERMEBURRIEM
REEBEREMZENEERR -

Economic risk
e

Extensive investment management experience of the
Board.

BEEgNREEEZEERR -

Regularly review on strategy and performance of each
business unit.

TEHtR A B RIS BB AL 2 SRAE M R3R o

Perform comprehensive due diligence on all potential
acquisitions.

HATAEEREFRETEHERES -

Regularly review forward looking indicators to identify
economic conditions.
E Him AT AR 1EHE AR DUR BB RIR
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BEEIREOM(E)

Principal risks Description Mitigating actions

R

ETERMRE RE

Credit risk Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Fully understand customers and carry out credit quality

EE R Group if a customer or counterparty to a assessment on customers before granting loans.
financial instrument fails to meet its contractual RIEHERAE2E FMELPUEEPETEEESR
obligations. S o

Business risk

E TN

Operational risk

FEERBRARERTIAZEPARSHF
REIMR REBITEHANRME - AREA
XMBER AR -

Business risk is the risk that any of our major
customers ceases their business relationship
with us.
FBERBMREMEET L IEEKFE
TERAMR -

Operational risk is the risk of increasing labour

Regularly monitor loans and interest receivable and
assess for their recoverability.

ERERREERLNE - MHZEAERIREE -

Continually review market trends and maintain a
competitive position by retaining product quality.
BARPKERER  FERNMSBLUERRF
HifT o

Regularly assess the requirements of labours based on

218 [ e costs and labour shortages which could have forecasts.
a material and adverse impact on the Group's R TR E B S THEXK -
operation and profitability.
EERM RS TKA LA RS TRERGA
BAEELERBMENERERTHME
= .
Liquidity risk Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not Regularly monitor liquidity and statement of financial
TMENE & AR be able to meet its financial obligations as they position.
fall due. EMERRBE S RMBEAHRAE
mEBECRRAREBRERBITEREZ Maintain appropriate liquidity to cover commitments.
MBEE AR - REBEERBDE S LB AGH °
Limit liquidity risk exposure by investing only in securities
listed on stock exchanges.
BBERENRHA ETREFREIRBESER -
Ensure acceptable and appropriate finance in place, or
believed to be available before committing investment
projects.
AEREFEANEREAXBAAIEINEEE
4o
Price risk Price risk is the risk that changes in equity prices Regularly monitor equity portfolio to address any
BERER will affect the Group's income and the value of portfolio issues promptly.

its holdings of equities.
BRERAETEREBNARE IR
FEEZREEZH AR -

TEHIEE R R EIR B G AR R IR ({1 B4R &
98 o

Spread price risk exposure by investing a number of
equities.

BREZEARTIAS BBRER -



Principal risks

Description
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Mitigating actions

ﬁwﬂ

TERR

Exchange risk
B 3 [l B

People risk

AFER

Legal and
regulatory risk
ARNEERR

R
Exchange risk is the risk that changes in foreign
exchange rates will affect the Group's income
and the value of its holdings of assets.

EX AR AT ERNEBRANETE
EEEZINEEREE) 2 AR -

People risk is the risk of loss of the services of
any directors, senior management and other
key personnel which could have a material
adverse effect on the Group’s businesses.
AZRRAEMNES SREEABRHE
b EZANER IR AT AL AR B X i
BREARTNZEZ RS

Legal and regulatory risk is the risk that a
breach of laws and regulations could lead to
litigation, investigations or disputes, resulting
in additional costs being incurred, civil and/or
criminal proceedings and reputational damage.
FEREREERRRERER LR IS
BEReA AT EEEINKAEA R
ERIMNERFREBEBE 2 AR

fFRENE

.

Closely monitor statement of financial position and
cashflow exchange risk exposures.

RERHBRAE LRSS HELER -

Provide competitive reward and benefit packages that
ensure our ability to attract and retain the employees we
need.

REFHFE N2 BRSNS B A RRAEE B
NREI RBERTZ AT o

Ensure that the staff of the Group have the right working
environment to enable them to do the best job possible
and maximise their satisfaction at work.
BRASEZETIAGEZ ITHERBUCEIRR
RABEMIF THER S TERBERALL °

Monitor changes and developments in the regulatory
environment and ensure that sufficient resources being
made available to implement any required changes.
ERRERBEZEPNERIERATBZERE N
EMERIREZZE -

Seek legal or other specialist advice as appropriate.

EERSARIEMBERALELR -
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on its principal
activities and the risk of non-compliance with such laws and regulations
could lead to litigation, investigations or disputes, resulting in additional
costs being incurred, civil and/ or criminal proceedings and reputational
damage. During the year, the Group has complied with the Money Lenders
Ordinance and the Money Lenders Regulations for its money lending
business.

ENVIRONMENT

The Group is committed to promoting an environmentally conscious
work place and aims and places significant emphasis on minimizing our
environmental impact and to create a more sustainable future for future
generations.

Our production operations are carried out by the production facilities
of Hui Bao Feng Jewellery (Shenzhen) Limited ("HBF Jewellery”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary, in Shenzhen, which is subject to certain PRC
environmental laws and regulations. The primary waste generated from
our production processes is waste water, which is treated in compliance
with the applicable PRC environmental laws and regulations. To ensure
the operation of HBF Jewellery is in compliance with the applicable
environmental law on an ongoing basis, we have entered into a waste
water treatment agreement with a qualified water treatment company
which is responsible for collecting the wastewater in the production
process.

HBF Jewellery has been compliant with all relevant PRC environmental
related laws and regulations in all material respects during the year.

BFERERER

AEBERETHBEREARBETERHZ
BB NETHFAERRRR AL B
PELAM - EERINKA - RERLMER
FREBEE - FR  ARECHENEEED
BT HEANEDIRREARD

B

AREHNRD TIEBFMORREH - HHLE
FRRBEAOEREOVE - AT —RAE
SEBRMAK -

BMNEETIERASEZEN B ARIEEZ IR
ERYDBRAFT(EELIKRE ) NRYINEE
BHEETT - BETE THBIRSAMRAG o F
MEEERETEANTIEREEYMAREK  &F
BEEYEERERATERRENERERE - B
HRESLCHREFALEREFTEEANIRE
% BRMEE-KEEREKEE QTG EEK
IS ZARBEREEEBREPELENE
7K e

EECREFNEMBERATE —BEETHAESR
B BERIRARRDA DI FOEAR AV ARE
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EENGSHREEAEREE

CHAIRMAN

Mr. LAN Zhi Cheng, age 41, is executive director and the chairman of the
Company. He holds a bachelor's degree in engineering (manufacturing
systems engineering with management) from King's College London,
University of London. He was appointed as the executive director and
chairman of the Company on 19 November 2016 and 10 December 2016,
respectively.

Mr. Lan is the co-founder of BlackPilot GmbH, a company located in Europe
and is specialised in business process management software. He also co-
founded Promotiontube GmbH, an e-commerce platform. Mr. Lan is a
director of Capital Hills Investment Holdings Limited, which is a commercial
property investment company focused on acquiring high-return projects
and retail properties at prime locations and engaged in the development
and management of serviced apartments and boutique hotels in Hong
Kong. Mr. Lan has been an executive director of Winto Group (Holdings)
Limited ("Winto Group”) (@ company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 8238) since 2016 and resigned as executive director of Winto Group
on 2 August 2017.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LEUNG Alex, aged 38, obtained his Bachelor of Commerce degree
form the University of Auckland, New Zealand in May 2000. Mr. Leung
had worked in two international accounting firms from December 2000
to February 2012. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accounting and the CPA Australia. He has more than 15
years of experience in auditing, accounting and corporate management.
Mr. Leung was appointed as executive director of the Company on 11 April
2016. Mr. Leung is currently an executive director, the chief financial officer
and the company secretary of Man Sang International Limited (a company
listed on Stock Exchange (stock code: 938)). Mr. Leung is also an executive
director and the vice chairman of China Healthwise Holdings Limited (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 348)).

EE

EEWAE  BF45 0 AARRNRITEER
FE - EBEREARBIASHTISHRNETRE(R
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F11 7198 k2016F 12 A 10 EZE AR AT H
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016FE—HABMEB(ZR)BRAE ([ 2
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Mr. Archambaud-Chao Percy Henry Junior, aged 31, was appointed as
an executive director on 19 November 2016. He graduated from University
of the West of England Bristol with a bachelor of arts degree in business
administration in 2008. Mr. Archambaud-Chao joined the valuation advisory
services department of Jones Lang LaSalle Limited in 2009 before working
in its investment department. Jones Lang LaSalle Limited is a professional
services and investment management firm offering specialised real estate
services to clients seeking increased value by owning, occupying and
investing in real estate. Mr. Archambaud-Chao has been a director of
Capstone Properties Limited since 2014, which is a company that provides
a platform in dealing with local and overseas properties investments.
Mr. Archambaud-Chao is a holder of an estate agent’s licence issued
by the Estate Agents Authority. Mr. Archambaud-Chao is the son of Mr.
Archambaud-Chao Percy, a director of Crown City Inc Limited, a substantial
shareholder of the Company.

Mr. LUK Siu Fung Mark, aged 28, was appointed as executive director on
20 December 2016. Mr. Luk graduated from Trinity College, University of
Cambridge with a bachelor degree in Economics. From July 2011 to August
2015, he worked in SinoCloud Group Limited (formerly known as Armarda
Group Limited), a company listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange (stock
code: 5EK) as a project manager in charge of fundraising exercises. Mr.
Luk joined Alternus Capital Holdings Limited as an associate director in
2015 and has been involved in various investment, corporate finance and
merger and acquisition projects.

Mr. LEE Tsz Hang, aged 43, was appointed as executive director on 20
December 2016. Mr. Lee holds a bachelor degree in Economics from the
University of Winnipeg, Canada and had worked as associate director of
V/C Brokerage Limited. Mr. Lee has over 15 years of securities and financial
markets, and corporate finance experience, including securities investment,
initial public offerings, mergers and acquisitions, corporate and capital
restructuring, business projects evaluation, and equity and debt fund
raising. Mr. Lee is currently the director of Win Ways Investment Limited, he
has been involved in a number of listed, non-listed companies, financing
mergers, acquisitions and other projects. In addition, Mr. Lee is currently
an executive director of Tech Pro Technology Development Limited (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3823)).

Archambaud-Chao Percy Henry Junior %t 4
BE3RE - R2016F 11 A19BEZRFEAARRQ A
R ITEE  Archambaud-Chao %t 4 122008 F B
70 2 4% B K 2 1 B A7 4 (University of the West of
England Bristo) 2 AN TR E R X BT B4 -
Archambaud-Chao /e £ 2009F Sl AR 2 BT H R
AR EERRES - HERAREREER o
EMITERARAREEXEFHEATIRGE 25
ERBEKEEERLE  RERUFE - A%
HEEME B BIREE ° Archambaud-Chao
EAEB04FR—ERTREHEHEGR AR
ZEF  ZARABMWRBINEHERERMR
¥ & ° Arhcmabaud-Chaoft £ B ERIBEE
BEE 2 ENRIBERE ZFHE A o Athcmabaud-
Chao %t 4 A Arhcmabaud-Chao Percy Jo 4 (KA &) £
ERREEERAFZIEE) 27T -
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Alternus Capital Holdings Limited#&{TEFEE » I
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ZFESEE - IRF435% 0 201655124208
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RAEABFES - ZLERELSRERTES
IERT¥RMETRESRISTLER  BIEEHFK
E - BRARFEE M PERELREHR B
¥EBETEUARRARBEBEE - LR LB
EREERARICESR  HE2HELE LT RIE
FRAF MEHBEREMIER o SN FEE
RABLEREERERAR(EBRM EMAAH
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. PANG Siu Yin, aged 58, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director on 19 November 2016. He graduated from the University
of Leeds with a bachelor of laws degree in 1984 and obtained a master of
business administration degree from the University of Aston in Birmingham
in 1985. Mr. Pang also obtained a postgraduate certificate in laws from the
University of Hong Kong in 1988. Mr. Pang has been a practising solicitor
of the High Court of Hong Kong since 1990 and was also admitted as a
solicitor in England and Wales in 1997. He is currently a partner of LCP, a
firm of solicitors in Hong Kong, with his practice focusing on commercial
and litigation. He was appointed as an independent non-executive director
of Winto Group on 24 July 2015 and Beijing Gas Blue Sky Holdings Limited
(a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 6828) and Singapore
Stock Exchange (stock code: UQ7)) on 21 February 2017.

Mr. LAI Yat Yuen, aged 59, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director on 19 November 2016. He joined Asia Port Services
Limited in 1994 as a finance manager and was promoted to deputy
general manager in 1999. Asia Port Services Limited provides a loading
alternative for container vessels anchored in mid-stream or moored to
buoys in Hong Kong's harbour. Mr. Lai has gained ample experience
in financial management from his employment with Asia Port Services
Limited. He also has experience in auditing field between 1981 and 1986
while working at Wong C. Ming & Co., Peat, Marwick, Mitchell & Co., as well
as the government of Hong Kong. Mr. Lai holds an honours diploma in
accountancy studies. He is a fellow member of the Chartered Association
of Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

Mr. LEE Kin Keung, aged 57, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director on 19 November 2016. He graduated from the University
of New South Wales with a bachelor of commerce degree and a master
of commerce degree. He also holds a master of applied finance degree
from Macquarie University. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and was admitted as a certified practising
accountant of the Australian Society of Certified Practising Accountants
in 1992. Mr. Lee has experience in finance, management, auditing and
accounting fields and had worked in Touche Ross & Co. from 1985 to 1990,
and in Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from 1990 to 1992 and from 1995 to
1997. Mr. Lee was appointed as a director of Kandour Consultants Limited,
a consultancy and advisory company in Hong Kong, in 2013. Mr. Lee has
been a director of Crater Gold Mining Limited, the shares of which are
listed on the Australian Securities Exchange, since 2014.
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Mr. CHAN Chi Yuen, aged 50, was appointed as independent non-
executive director on 20 December 2016. Mr. Chan holds a bachelor
degree with honours in Business Administration and a master of science
degree with distinction in Corporate Governance and Directorship. He is a
fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and The Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. He is a practicing certified
public accountant and has extensive experience in financial management,
corporate development, corporate finance and corporate governance.

He is currently an executive director of Noble Century Investment Holdings
Limited (stock code: 2322), Royal Century Resources Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Kate China Holdings Limited) (stock code: 8125) and
e-Kong Group Limited (stock code: 524). He is also an independent non-
executive director of Asia Energy Logistics Group Limited (Stock code: 351),
China Baoli Technologies Holdings Limited (formerly known as Rex Global
Entertainment Holdings Limited) (stock code: 164), Jun Yang Financial
Holdings Limited (stock code: 397), Leyou Technologies Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1089), Media Asia Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 8075),
U-RIGHT International Holdings Limited (stock code: 627) and New Times
Energy Corporation Limited (stock code: 166). He was an executive director
of South East Group Limited (currently known as China Minsheng Drawin
Technology Group Limited) (stock code: 726) from December 2013 to July
2015 and Co-Prosperity Holdings Limited (stock code: 707) from December
2014 to October 2015, an executive director and chairman of Kong Sun
Holdings Limited (stock code: 295) from December 2011 to September
2013, and an independent non-executive director of China Sandi Holdings
Limited (stock code: 910) from September 2009 to July 2014, all of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. TSE Chi Keung, aged 36, is the chief financial officer and company
secretary of the Group. He obtained his Bachelor of Accounting degree
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2005. Mr. Tse worked in
Ernst & Young in Hong Kong before joining the Group in July 2014. He
is responsible for the financial and accounting management, corporate
governance affairs and merger and acquisition activities of the Group. Mr.
Tse is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He has more than 10 years of experience in auditing, accounting and
management.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

Affluent Partners Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) recognise the importance of achieving the
highest standard of corporate governance consistent with the needs and
requirements of its businesses and the best interest of all of its stakeholders,
and the board of directors (the “Board”) is fully committed to doing so.
The Board believes that high standards of corporate governance provide
a framework and solid foundation for the Group to manage business risks,
enhance transparency, achieve high standard of accountability and protect
stakeholders’ interests.

The Group has adopted a corporate governance statement of policy
which provides guidance on the application of the corporate governance
principles on the Group, with reference to the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the “Director(s)"), the
Company has complied with all code provisions as set out in the CG Code
throughout the year ended 31 March 2017 and, where appropriate, the
applicable recommended best practices of the CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “"Model Code") set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct for dealing in securities
of the Company by the Directors. All Directors have confirmed, upon
specific enquiries made by the Company, that they have complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 March 2017. To ensure Directors’ dealings in the securities of
the Company (the “Securities”) are conducted in accordance with the
Model Code and securities code of the Company, a Director is required to
notify the chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”) in writing and obtain a
written acknowledgement from the Chairman prior to any dealings in the
Securities.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the Group, which
includes leadership and control of the Company and oversees the Group’s
businesses, strategic decisions, internal control, risk management and
performances. The management team is delegated with the authority
and responsibility by the Board for the day-to-day management of the
Group. The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed.
Major corporate matters that are specifically delegated by the Board
to the management include (1) the preparation of interim and annual
reports and announcements for the Board's approval before publishing;
(2) implementation of adequate systems of internal controls and risk
management procedures; and (3) compliance with relevant statutory and
regulatory requirements and rules and regulations. It is the responsibility
of the Board to determine the appropriate corporate governance practices
applicable to the Company’s circumstances and to ensure processes and
procedures are in place to achieve the Company’s corporate governance
objectives.

The Board has maintained the necessary balance of skills and experience
appropriate for the business requirements and objectives of the Group
and for the exercise of independent judgement. Each Director with various
professional qualifications, experience and related financial management
expertise have contributed to the effective direction of the Company and
provided adequate checks and balances to safeguard to the interests
of both the Group and the shareholders. Hence, the Board believes that
the current Board composition satisfy the balance of expertise, skills and
experience to the corporate governance requirements of the Group as well
as the ongoing development and management of its business activities.

The Board currently comprises five Executive Directors, namely Mr. Lan Zhi
Cheng (Chairman), Mr. Archambaud-Chao Percy Henry Junior, Mr. Leung
Alex, Mr. Luk Siu Fung Mark and Mr. Lee Tsz Hang and four Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Pang Siu Yin, Mr. Lai Yat Yuen, Mr. Lee
Kin Keung and Mr. Chan Chi Yuen.

The biographies of the Directors are set out in “Profile of Directors and
Senior Management” on pages 23 to 26 of this annual report.

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as the
operation and financial performance of the Company, and to review and
approve the Company's interim and annual results. During the year, four
Board meetings were held and the attendance of each Director at the
Board meetings is set out in the section headed “Board and Committees
Meetings” of this report.
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Regular Board meetings for each year are scheduled in advance to facilitate
maximum attendance of Directors. All Directors are given an opportunity
to include matters for discussion in the agenda. The Company Secretary
assists the Chairman in preparing the agenda for meetings to comply with
all applicable rules and regulations. The agenda and the accompanying
Board papers are normally sent to the Directors at least three days before
the intended date of a Board meeting. Draft minutes of each Board
meeting are circulated to the Directors for their comment before being
tabled at the next Board meeting for approval. All minutes are kept by the
Company Secretary and are open for inspection at any reasonable time on
reasonable notice by any Director.

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”), all
Directors appointed to fill a causal vacancy shall hold office only until the
next following general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible
for re-election at the meeting. At each annual general meeting, one third of
the Directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years.

Save for the family relationships disclosed in the Profile of Directors and
Senior Management set out on pages 23 to 26 of this annual report, the
Directors do not have material financial, business or other relationships
with one another.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and the CEO of the Group are clearly defined and
segregated to ensure independence and proper checks and balances. The
Chairman focuses on the business strategy and direction of the Company
and has executive responsibilities, provides leadership for the Board and
ensures proper and effective functioning of the Board in discharging of
its responsibilities. The CEO is accountable to the Board for the overall
implementation of the Company’s strategies and the co-ordination of
overall business operations.

There is currently no officer carrying the title of CEO up to the date of this
annual report. In the absence of the CEO, the duties of the CEO have been/
will continue to be undertaken by other executive members of the Board,
namely Mr. Archambaud-Chao Percy Henry Junior, Mr. Leung Alex, Mr.
Luk Siu Fung Mark and Mr. Lee Tsz Hang, therefore, in the opinion of the
Directors, the roles of the Chairman and the CEO have been/will continue
to be properly segregated in the absence of an officer carrying the title of
CEO.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All Directors, including Non-executive Directors, appointed to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the existing Board, shall hold office only until
the first general meeting after his or her appointment and shall then be
eligible for re-election.

Moreover, all Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-
executive Directors) of the Company are appointed for a term of three
years expiring on the earlier of either (i) the conclusion of the annual
general meeting of the Company in the year of the third anniversary of
the appointment or re-election of that Director, or (ii) the expiration of
the period within which the annual general meeting of the Company is
required to be held in the year of the third anniversary of the appointment
or re-election of that Director and in any event, subject to earlier
determination in accordance with the Articles and/or any applicable laws
and regulations.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has complied with the requirements under Rules 3.10(1),
3.10(2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules. The Company has received
confirmation of independence from all four Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Pang Siu Yin, Mr. Lai Yat Yuen, Mr. Lee Kin Keung and
Mr. Chan Chi Yuen in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board has reviewed the independence of all Independent Non-
executive Directors and concluded that all of them are independent within
the definition of the Listing Rules. Furthermore, the Board is not aware
of the occurrence of any events which would cause it to believe that the
independence of any of the Independent Non-executive Directors has
been impaired up to the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Upon appointment, each new Director receives a comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction package covering business operations, policy and
procedures of the Company as well as the general, statutory and regulatory
obligations of being a Director to ensure that he/she is sufficiently aware
of his/her responsibilities under the Listing Rules and other relevant
regulatory requirements.
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The Directors, on an ongoing basis, will receive amendments to or
updates on the relevant laws, rules and regulations. In addition, the
Company encourages the Directors to enrol in a wide range of professional
development courses and seminars relating to the Listing Rules, Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and corporate governance practices so that
they can continuously improve their relevant knowledge and skills.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) in October
2014, which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diversed
Board and sees increasing diversity at Board level as an essential element
in supporting the attainment of the Company’s strategic objectives and
sustainable development.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the consideration
of a number of factors, including but not limited to talents, skills,
experience, independence and knowledge. The Company will also take
into consideration its own business model and specific needs from time to
time. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard to the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises 9 Directors, amongst
them, 4 are Independent Non-executive Directors, thereby promoting
critical review and control of the management process. The Board is also
characterized by significant diversity, whether considered in terms of age,
professional experience, skills and knowledge.

Having reviewed the Policy and the Board's composition, the Nomination
Committee considered that the requirements of the Policy had been met.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

An Audit Committee has been established by the Board with specific
written terms of reference and all members of the Audit Committee are
Independent Non-executive Directors. Pursuant to its terms of reference,
the Audit Committee is authorised to commit Company funds in order
to obtain advice from outside legal counsel, accountants, investigatory
services or other expert advice. Details of the authority and responsibilities
of the Audit Committee are available on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Pang Siu Yin, Mr. Lai Yat Yuen and Mr. Lee Kin Keung.
Mr. Lai Yat Yuen is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Audit Committee held 2
meetings to review the interim and the annual results before their
submission to the Board. The attendance of each member of the Audit
Committee is set out in the section headed "Board and Committees
Meetings” of this report.

The Audit Committee has also discussed and reviewed the key audit
matters determined by the external auditor under the new and revised
auditor reporting standards under Hong Kong Standards on Auditing for
the year ended 31 March 2017.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A Remuneration Committee has been established by the Board with
specific written terms of reference and the majority of the members
of the Remuneration Committee are Independent Non-executive
Directors. Details of the authority and responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee comprises 3 Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Pang Siu Yin, Mr. Lai Yat Yuen and Mr. Lee Kin Keung,
and 1 Executive Director, namely Mr. Lan Zhi Cheng. Mr. Pang Siu Yin is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Remuneration Committee held
one meeting to approve the remuneration packages and performance
bonuses for the Directors and senior management of the Company. The
attendance of each member of the Remuneration Committee is set out in
the section headed “Board and Committees Meetings” of this report.

Details of the amount of Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31
March 2017 are set out in note 33(a) to the financial statements.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

A Nomination Committee has been established by the Board with specific
terms of reference. The Nomination Committee is responsible for, amongst
other things, identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members, considering the reappointment of the Directors and succession
planning for Directors and making recommendations to the Board in
respect of the aforesaid matters. Details of the authority and responsibilities
of the Nomination Committee are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee comprises 3 Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Pang Siu Yin, Mr. Lai Yat Yuen and Mr. Lee Kin Keung,
and 1 Executive Director, namely Mr. Archambaud-Chao Percy Henry
Junior. Mr. Lee Kin Keung is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Nomination Committee has
reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board and concluded
that members of the Board has possessed the expertise and independence
to carry out the Board's functions and responsibilities.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

According to the code provision A6.5 of the CG Code, all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the board
remains informed and relevant.

All Directors have participated in continuous professional development
and provided a record of training they received for the financial year ended
31 March 2017 to the Company. The Company has also continuously
updated Directors on the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules
and other applicable regulatory requirements, to ensure compliance and
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.

The participation by each Director in continuous professional development
for the year ended 31 March 2017 is set out below:

Name of Director

Mr. Lan Zhi Cheng
Mr. Archambaud-Chao Percy Henry Junior

m/u\m%i

Mr. Leung Alex R E
Mr. Luk Siu Fung Mark REJKSR A
Mr. Lee Tsz Hang ZFESTE
Mr. Pang Siu Yin KB SE
Mr. Lai Yat Yuen BmIRSTAE
Mr. Lee Kin Keung TR

Mr. Chan Chi Yuen PRAER A

Archambaud-Chao Percy Henry Junior4t 4

EERIIREXRR

RIBCEERTRIFEACSIETANRY - TEES

J“EE SEPBEEERR  FRUEMEMBEK
AERHEEBHEABEIEEARIEREZ

EATHERSFLER -

FBESFHELUEBESELRE  YREARAR
M SERNEE201743 831 B IEITREERTE TS
Nz 78k o AARIMAE AESRME EMRA R
HtEaAEERTRMER2ER  BRESE
FTREBR THRRTCEEAER -

HE20177F3A31ALFERES2HEGES
ERR2EHEINWT

Reading materials relating
to rules and/or attending
trainings and seminars

BERRARERLZ
BIEMRIR, =R
2mEI RN E

N

S SN SSSASS
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BOARD AND COMMITTEES MEETINGS ESgRZEEEEE

The individual attendance records of each Director at the general meetings HE20177F3A3NHLEFE SEEHEBRREK
and the meetings of the Board and various Committees during the year 2 EXgREZELLR 2ERIHEREEHT
ended 31 March 2017 are set out below: N

Annual  Extraordinary

general General Audit Remuneration Nomination
meeting Meeting Board Committee Committee Committee
Name of Director EEpg RRAFAE RREIAE Bz ENZRER FHzEe REZE8®
(Note 9)
(GiED)
Mr. Lan Zhi Cheng (1) EEmAL () = 11 5/5 = = =
Mr. Archambaud-Chao Archambaud-Chao
Percy Henry Junior (2) Percy Henry
Juniorft 4 (2) - 1 5/5 - - 1N
Mr. Leung Alex RIS 1/1 11 717 - - -
Mr. Luk Siu Fung Mark (3) FEJKSEEAE (3) - 11 3/3 = = =
Mr. Lee Tsz Hang (3) STELE () = 0/ 3/3 = = =
Mr. Pang Siu Yin (4) PRBRAE (@) - 0/1 5/5 - - 1/1
Mr. Lai Yat Yuen (4) REREE @) - 11 5/5 - - 1
Mr. Lee Kin Keung (4) R (4) = 0N 5/5 = = 11
Mr. Chan Chi Yuen (5) FERED) - i 33 - - -
Mr. Cheng Chung Hing (6) ENEL A (6) 11 - 3/4 = 1/1 =
Ms. Yan Sau Man, Amy (6) BEZ/NE (6) 11 - 4/4 - 1/1 -
Mr. Chen Zhi Wei (7) REBELED) - - - - - -
Mr. Fung Yat Sang (8) SRR (8) 1Al - 4/4 2”2 1/1 -
Mr. Look Andrew (8) BE LA (8) 11 = 4/4 2/2 11 =
Mr. Tsui Francis King Chung (8) ZS1F1 55 4 (8) 1/1 - 4/4 22 11 -
Notes: FisE -
(1) Mr. Lan Zhi Cheng was appointed as an executive Director on 19 November 2016 and a ) B S AN 2016FE 1 19O ER T AHTEE -
member of the Remuneration Committee on 10 December 2016. WHR2016F 1210 EEZ T AFMEESKE -
) Mr. Archambaud-Chao Percy Henry Junior was appointed as an executive Director on 19 %) Archambaud-Chao Percy Henry Junior 5t 4 722016 4 11
November 2016 and a member of the Nomination Committee on 10 December 2016. AI9OBEZEAHITES - WHR2016F 128108

RERRBEEEKE -

(3) Mr. Luk Siu Fung Mark and Mr. Lee Tsz Hang were appointed as executive Directors on 3) PEJKER S E R EFHEEANR2016FE12 8208 EEZE
20 December 2016. RPITESE o
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(4) Mr. Pang Siu Yin, Mr. Lai Yat Yuen and Mr. Lee Kin Keung were appointed as independent
non-executive Directors on 19 November 2016 and members of the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nominations Committee on 10 December 2016.

(5) Mr. Chan Chi Yuen was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 20
December 2016.

(6) Mr. Cheng Chung Hing and Ms. Yan Sau Man, Amy resigned as executive Directors

and members of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee on 10
December 2016.

7) Mr. Chen Zhi Wei resigned as executive Director on 11 April 2016.

(8) Mr. Fung Yat Sang, Mr. Look Andrew and Mr. Tsui Francis King Chung resigned as
independent non-executive Directors and members of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee on 10 December 2016.

9 The attendance was stated by reference to the number of Board and committee

meetings held during the tenure of Directors.

Apart from formal meetings, matters requiring Board approval were
arranged by means of circulation of written resolutions.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 which gives a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2017, and of
the results and cash flows for year then ended. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2017, the Board has selected
appropriate accounting policies, applied them consistently in accordance
with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards which are pertinent to
its operations and relevant to the financial statements, made judgements
and estimates that are prudent and reasonable, and ensured the
preparation of the financial statements on the going concern basis.

The Group endeavours to present a balanced, clear and comprehensible
assessment of the Group's performance, position and prospects. The
interim and annual results of the Company are announced in a timely
manner within the limit of two months and three months, respectively,
after the end of the relevant periods in accordance with the Listing Rules.

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibility for preparing all
information and representation contained in the financial statements of
the Company for the year ended 31 March 2017.

@ REBRAL  RaRELE  FRIBELER20165F11
R19REZERBEIIFNITES - WN2016F12H8
WHEZERERZES FHEESRRELEE

BKE -

(5) IR EN2016F12 A20 B EZ (T BB IEHNTT
Exo

6)  EAELSEAREAEZ/PNER20165 12710 H BT
TEEURFHEEGRIREEEEKE -

@) EEEER2016F4B8 11 BBHIHITES ©

/) BRESE - EREEREYHEEN2016F12H
0RBEBLFNTESURERZEZES  FMWE

EERREEREENKE -

9 HERBDZ2REFTHARTRESS SRR
gl o

BRIEAERI  AEFSHENTEUEERE
IR -

BEREE

EEeAREERUEZ2017F3IAHILEFEZ
FIEHRE - NEB QAT B ARE®ER2017F3 A
NNHZEBRRUREEZA I FEZE£ERIR
SRE  MEEEZ2017F3ABILFEEZH1E
WA EFSCHAAESHBEE  BERER
HEEB LY BREE @ BB SmEER
ERBIE R AR 2 HIE R AhaT - WIHRRIRIFEL

REE N - BWRhzEAEARERE
ARARATR - ARB 2P MREFRECRED
BRAIZIRE - D RlEEEREEREMEA k=
EAZBRHARERAE -

BEOAE  FEFETREHIINEZ2017F3
A31HIEFE AR BB EHRE AN FTE E R RE

it o



AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

On 19 July 2017, the Company received a letter of resignation from
PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC") in respect of their resignation as the
auditor of the Company for the financial year ended 31 March 2017. Moore
Stephens CPA Limited ("Moore Stephens”) has been appointed as the new
auditor of the Company with effect from 4 August 2017 to fill the casual
vacancy following the resignation of PwC.

The services provided by the auditors to the Group and associated
remuneration were as follows:
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TEREARE (&)

R ET BN &

2017978198 » KA REER LF K EETAD
ERPT ([ 2B ERKE ) BEE BT AN D BIAZEED
BT REBHBESHBAAERAT(TRES
HE ) BEEREAANRRFIZEED - B2017F88
ABRAM - LUERE RRUKERTE R
ﬁ;{ o

ZHMAASBER M R MABMSNT

HK$'000
THET

Audit of financial statements SEZRBRE
— Moore Stephens — KEEWmE
- Pwe — B SRIKIE
Review of interim results SERgrh R4S
— Moore Stephens — KEEWE
- Pwe —EARKE
Other non-audit services HAth IEERZ RS
— Moore Stephens — KEEEE
- PwC — R ECRIKE

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board acknowledges that it has overall responsibility for the design
and implementation of internal controls and risk management which
covers financial reporting, operations, compliance and risk management
of the Company, as well as continuous monitoring the effectiveness of
such internal controls and risk management. The Board has delegated such
responsibility to the management of the Company. The management,
under the supervision of the Board, has established an on-going process
for identifying, evaluating and managing significant risks faced by the
Group.

The Audit Committee reviews the internal controls and risk management
that are significant to the Group on an on-going basis. The Audit
Committee also considers the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the Group's accounting and financial reporting
function, as well as their training programmes and budgets.

2,000
1,300

N/A

N/A
228

REREEIE R B Ry B

EEQERAYRA RATANERE MARE R
ZEEEMLE  BRAXRBPEHE L8 */\%E
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In light of the size and scale of the Group’s businesses, the Company
does not establish a separate internal audit department. The Group
has engaged independent professionals to conduct a review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control and risk management systems
annually. The independent professional engaged has performed a review
of the effectiveness of the internal control and risk management systems
covering the period from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017. The review
covered all key controls and based on inquiry, observation and analytical
review procedures supplemented by testing of transactions, reports
and reconciliation. The overall opinion on the internal control and risk
management systems of the Group are satisfactory.

The Board is satisfied that the internal control system in place covering all
material controls including financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions for the year under review and up to the
date of issuance of the annual report is reasonably effective and adequate.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tse Chi Keung has been the Company Secretary of the Company
since December 2014. He is a full time employee of the Company and has
adequate working knowledge on the Company to discharge his duty as
the Company Secretary. Mr. Tse reports to the Chairman of the Company
and is responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance matters.
For the year under review, Mr. Tse has confirmed that he has taken no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an
Extraordinary General Meeting (“EGM”)

Pursuant to the Articles and the Companies Law Cap. 22 (Laws 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands (the “Companies Law"),
registered shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) holding
not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company (the
"EGM Requisitionists”) can deposit a written request to convene an EGM
at the registered office of the Company (the “Registered Office”), which is
presently situated at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The EGM Requisitionists must state in
their request(s) the objects of the EGM and such request(s) must be signed
by all the EGM Requisitionists and may consist of several documents in like
form, each signed by one or more of the EGM Requisitionists.

ENAEEER 2 RPN IIRE - AR E T ERL
BERHNI LI - AREDZEBIEEAL
BEHASERNBEELERERRFZ B I
BT - AEBZRENBIEE A TEH2016F
48182201793 A31 B M 2 AEREEIE R R R &
BESFZHIEETRF - BERTREMEE
metpr s WARNER SAR - REREERATET
2EH BREERSTHRIERF - AEERIPE
FEREBEMREE FSARE °

EEEEH RNOBFEARBERNFHRTEA
i BANNERERARREMEEAEE B85
7% RERAREEANAREERE - LB
BEMA RSB

REWE

FHEABELEB2014F 12 AR B EARR T Z AR
E-FAARAEZHREE  EERHNIIEL
B EEBRTARNMENEE - HAEARART
FIEESR  TEERCEERAEERNEETRME
ER -REBEFEAN  SILEERFEEEZTL
15/ N 2 FRRA R R

IR SRR

BRREHEBRERBFINARE ([ REFR X
gHNER

BREBERAAGMAEFSHE 19061 FEITEER
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ADARAR R FMEE((FMEEES
EABRE  ERBFARERFRRE - s
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RERREBRABRBREFRIARERERIAR
EWER  MEBRERKEEREIRIEIRE
BRAZEZBTBHZHMERBRZ AN - &
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The Share Registrar will verify the EGM Requisitionists’ particulars in the
EGM Requisitionists’ request. Promptly after confirmation from the Share
Registrar that the EGM Requisitionists’ request is in order, the Company
Secretary will arrange with the Board to convene an EGM by serving
sufficient notice to all the registered Shareholders in accordance with all
the relevant statutory and regulatory requirements. On the contrary, if the
EGM Requisitionists’ request is verified not in order, the EGM Requisitionists
will be advised of the outcome and a EGM will not be convened as
requested.

The EGM Requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one-half
of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene an EGM
if within twenty-one (21) days of the deposit of the EGM Requisitionists’
request, the Board does not proceed duly to convene an EGM provided
that any EGM so convened is held within two (2) months from the date of
the original EGM Requisitionists’' request. An EGM so convened by the EGM
Requisitionists shall be convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible,
as that in which meetings are to be convened by the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward Proposals
at a General Meeting

There are no provisions in the Articles or the Companies Law for
shareholders to move new resolutions at general meetings. Shareholders
who wish to move a resolution may request the Company to convene
a general meeting in accordance with the procedures set out in the
preceding paragraph. Shareholders can also send enquiries and proposals
putting forward for shareholders’ consideration at shareholders” meetings
to the Board in writing to the Hong Kong office of the Company whose
contact details are as follows or directly by raising questions at the general
meeting of the Company.

Unit 2108, 21/F.
Harcourt House

39 Gloucester Road
Wan Chai

Hong Kong
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Shareholders’ Enquires and Proposals

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their shareholdings to
the Company's share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road East, Hong Kong, or call its customer
service hotline at (852) 2980 1333.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general
meetings of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The public are welcomed to give their comments and make enquiries
through the Company's website and by means of emails to the investor
relations department (email address: ir@affluent-partners.com). The
management always provides prompt responses to any such enquiries.
During the year ended 31 March 2017, there were no changes in the
Company's Memorandum and Articles of Association. An up-to-date
consolidated version of the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of
Association is available on the Company's website.

By Order of the Board
LAN Zhi Cheng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 August 2017
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

The directors (the “Director(s)”) of Affluent Partners Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) herein present their report together with the audited financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 March 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. During the year, the
Group is principally engaged in the purchasing, processing, designing,
production and wholesale distribution of pearls and jewellery products.

During the current financial year, the Group has established the operation
of strategic investment and financial services segment, with objectives
including investment in stock, bonds and other forms of securities and
other potential investment opportunities, and also money lending
business.

The principal activities of the Company’s major subsidiaries are set out in
note 31 to the consolidated financial statements in the annual report.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by operating segment is
set out in note 8 to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a discussion on
the Group's future business development are provided in the Chairman’s
Statement on pages 8 to 9 and Management Discussion and Analysis on
pages 10 to 22 of this Annual Report.

The capital risk management and financial risk management objectives and
policies of the Group are shown in note 5 and note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements on pages 96 to 103 of this Annual Report.

An analysis of the Group's performance during the year using financial key
performance indicators is provided in the Financial Highlights on page 5
and in the Management Discussion and Analysis under “Key performance
indicators” on pages 10 to 22 of this Annual Report.

Discussion on the Group’s environmental issues and compliance with
the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Company are contained in the Management Discussion and Analysis on
pages 10 to 22 and in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 27 to 40
of this Annual Report.

The Company's key relationships with its employees, customers and
suppliers and business associates that have a significant impact on the
Company and on which the Company’s success depends are shown in the
Management Discussion and Analysis under "Human Resources” section
on pages 10 to 22 and in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 27 to
40 of this Annual Report.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017 are set out in
the consolidated income statement on page 65 of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for the year
ended 31 March 2017.

The register of members of the Company (the “Shareholders”) will be
closed from Tuesday, 10 October 2017 to Friday, 13 October 2017 (both
days inclusive), for the purpose of determining Shareholders’ entitlement
to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company to be held on Friday, 13 October 2017 (the “2017 AGM”"),
during which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to
qualify for attending and voting at the 2017 AGM, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 9 October 2017.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company's net reserves available for distribution, calculated in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Law Cap 22 (Law 3
of 1961, as consolidated and reserved) of the Cayman Islands, as at 31
March 2017 amounted to HK$287,164,000 (2016: HK$308,619,000), which
represented the retained earnings/accumulated losses and share premium.

SHARES ISSUED IN THE YEAR

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in
note 24 to the consolidated financial statements in the annual report.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A five-year financial summary of the Group is set out on page 140.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Lan Zhi Cheng (Chairman)
(appointed as executive director on 19 November 2016 and
chairman on 10 December 2016)
Mr. Leung Alex (appointed on 11 April 2016)
Mr. Archambaud-Chao Percy Henry Junior
(appointed on 19 November 2016)
Mr. Luk Siu Fung Mark (appointed on 20 December 2016)
Mr. Lee Tsz Hang (appointed on 20 December 2016)
Mr. Chan Zhi Wei (resigned on 11 April 2016)
Ms. Yan Sau Man, Amy
(resigned as executive director and CEO on 10 December 2016)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Cheng Chung Hing
(resigned as non-executive director and chairman
on 10 December 2016)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Pang Siu Yin (appointed on 19 November 2016)

Mr. Lai Yat Yuen (appointed on 19 November 2016)

Mr. Lee Kin Keung (appointed on 19 November 2016)

Mr. Chan Chi Yuen (appointed on 20 December 2016)

Mr. Fung Yat Sang (resigned on 10 December 2016)

Mr. Look Andrew (resigned on 10 December 2016)

Mr. Tsui, Francis King Chung (resigned on 10 December 2016)

In accordance with article 84 of the Articles, at each annual general
meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at
an annual general meeting at least once every three years. Accordingly,
Mr. Lan Zhi Cheng, Mr. Leung Alex and Mr. Lee Kin Keung shall retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENT

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under Article 164(1) of the Articles, the Directors shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which
they or any of them shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or
supposed duty, in their respective offices, provided that this indemnity shall
not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may
attached to any of them. Such permitted indemnity provision is currently
in force and was in force throughout the year.

The Company has also taken out and maintained directors’ and officers’
liability insurance policy throughout the year, which indemnifies against
costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities that may be incurred by the
directors in the execution and discharge of their duties.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors and senior management are set out
on pages 23 to 26.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements,
no other contract of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries or its holding companies was a party and in which a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.
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Continuing connected transaction

On 17 March 2017, China South City Management Company Limited ("CSC
Management”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of China South City Holdings
Limited (“China South City"), a company listed on Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1668), entered into a sharing of office agreement (“Sharing of Office
Agreement”) with a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Tenant
Co") in relation to a sharing arrangement in respect of a shared premises for
a term of three years. Pursuant to the Sharing of Office Agreement, Tenant
Co will share with CSC Management the shared premises for use as offices
for a term commencing from 17 March 2017 and expiring on 16 March
2020. Since Mr. Cheng Chung Hing (“Mr. Cheng") was the former Chairman
and a non-executive director of the Company in the past 12 months.
According to Rule 14A.07 of the Listing Rules, he is a connected person of
the Company. He holds 100% interest in an investment holding company
which in turn holds 22.20% interest in China South City. Moreover, he is
personally interested as to 0.98% in the shares of China South City. Mr.
Cheng is also the co-chairman and an executive director of China South
City. Mr. Cheng Tai Po, the elder brother of Mr. Cheng, holds 100% interest
in an investment holding company which in turn holds 7.35% interest in
China South City, and is also personally interested as to 0.06% interest in
China South City (the percentage shareholding is calculated on the basis
of 8,006,321,999 shares of China South City issued as at 28 February 2017).
The Directors considered China South City as a connected person (as
defined under the Listing Rules) of the Company. As such, the entering
into of the Sharing of Office Agreement with CSC Management and the
transaction contemplated thereunder constitute a continuing connected
transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As all
relevant percentage ratios calculated pursuant to the Listing Rules for the
transaction contemplated under the Sharing of Office Agreement are more
than 0.1% but less than 5% on an annual basis, such transaction is subject
to the reporting, announcement and annual review requirements under
the Listing Rules but exempt from the independent Shareholders’ approval
requirement. Details of continuing connected transaction are set out in
note 29(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company has been entered
into or existed during the year.
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COMPETING BUSINESSES

Interests of Director in businesses which might compete with the Group
during the year ended 31 March 2017 were as follows:

Mr. Pang Siu Yin, independent non-executive Director of the Company,
is also an independent non-executive director of Winto Group Holdings
Limited (“Winto Group”) (Stock Exchange stock code: 8238), which is
also engaged in, among others, money lending business in Hong Kong.
However, the subsidiary of Winto Group is a newly acquired money lending
business which has not commenced operations. Therefore, the Board is
of the view that the businesses of Winto Group did not compete with the
businesses of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, as far as the Directors are aware of, none of the
Directors have any interests in a business which competes or may compete
with the business of the Group or have any other conflict of interests with
the Group during the year ended 31 March 2017.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) on 17 October 2014. As at the date of this report, the total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme (the “Options”) shall not in
aggregate exceed 26,632,116 shares, being 10% of the total number of
shares in issue at the date the shares of the Company commence trading
on the Stock Exchange. The total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all Options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme or any other share option schemes adopted by the
Company (and to which the provisions of chapter 17 of the Listing Rules
are applicable) must not exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in issue
from time to time. No option may be granted under any schemes of the
Company if this will result in the limit being exceeded. The total number
of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the Options granted to
each eligible participants (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
Options) under the Share Option Scheme in any 12 month period must not
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives to the
eligible participants to contribute to the Group and to enable the Group
to recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract resources that are
valuable to the Group. The Board may, at its discretion, grant an option to
the eligible participants to subscribe for the shares of the Company at an
exercise price and subject to the other terms of the Share Option Scheme.
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The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of ten
years commencing on the adoption of the Share Option Scheme. Subject
to certain restrictions contained in the Share Option Scheme, an option
may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme and the terms of grant thereof at any time during the applicable
option period, which is not more than 10 years from the date of grant
of option. There is no general requirement on the minimum period for
which an option must be held or the performance targets which must be
achieved before an option can be exercised under the terms of the Share
Option Scheme. However, at the time of granting any option, the Board
may, on a case by case basis, make such grant subject to such conditions,
restrictions or limitations including (without limitation) those in relation
to the minimum period of the options to be held and/or the performance
targets to be achieved as the Board may determine in its absolute
discretion.

The Board confirms that the Share Option Scheme is in compliance with
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. No option has ever been granted under the
Share Option Scheme since its adoption.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2017, the interests and short positions of the Directors in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ")), which (a) were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to provisions
of Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which the Directors have taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) were required,
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the "Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange were set out
below:

(a) Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company

Report ofthé-Directérs (Confinued)
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Number of ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each held

FBEEEREE.EL ZEEREE

Name of director

Capacity

Esns -8
Mr. Lee Tsz Hang Beneficial owner
FFEEE ERBEEA

Direct
interest

EEER
2,766,000 =

Percentage of

the issued

Total share capital of
interest the Company
EARAF]

e 2 BT’
BERER BRER Bak

2,766,000 0.87%

Deemed
interest
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(b) Long positions in underlying shares of the

Company

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors had, as at 31 March
2017, any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to provisions of Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which the Directors have taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (c) were required, pursuant to the
Model Code to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this report, none of the Directors
nor chief executive of the Company had registered an interest or a
short position in any share or underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
Director or their respective spouse or minor children, or were any such

rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a

party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in
any other body corporate.

(b)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN FERRZEBS R
SECURITIES
As at 31 March 2017, so far as the Directors are aware, the following persons R20178F38318 » FEEA » LTTAL(ERR
(other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company), were directly BEEN T ETHABBRINRARRRINRMD MIEE
or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the shares or short positions in the &% 17 A B 7 sk 2 A 5% sk LA 7B AR IS 75 5 M B
shares and the underlying shares of the Company, which are required to ERBIEXVERZE 2 K3 BRI T AR FE SR IR &
be disclosed under provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or % R AR E 6B 3 336167B R A IGFT i & SR A AR
which will be required, pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be entered DEURETAT ¢

in the register referred to therein, were as follows:

Number of Percentage of
ordinary shares theissued
of HK$0.01 Long/short share capital
Name of shareholder Capacity each held position of the Company
FEAEREE EARAF]
0.018TZ BBITRAE
RERER E-gv) ZERHE ®RE Btk
Crown City Inc Limited (note 1)  Beneficial owner 162,177,382 Long position 50.76%
BEAR AR (M) BHEEAA "R
Meridian Glory Limited (note 1) Interested in a controlled 162,177,382 Long position 50.76%
Meridian Glory Limited corporation TR
(Ft5E1) R EE R
Affluent Block Limited (note 1)  Interested in a controlled 162,177,382 Long position 50.76%
Affluent Block Limited corporation e
(Ff5E1) XA E S
Target Best Limited (note 1) Interested in a controlled 162,177,382 Long position 50.76%
Target Best Limited (FffzE1) corporation e

XA S

Mr. Fang Anghong (note 1) Interested in a controlled 162,177,382 Long position 50.76%
7 BRgAE M) corporation [55)

Ry rEER
Ms. Fang Saixiang (note 2) Interest of spouse 162,177,382 Long position 50.76%
HEEZ (M) =g e e
Mr. Cheng Ming Kit Beneficial owner 42,734,000 Long position 13.37%

EfRRAE A EEBEA e
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Notes:

Q)] These 162,177,382 shares are directly owned by Crown City Inc Limited, which is wholly-
owned by Meridian Glory Limited. Meridian Glory Limited is held by Mr. Chan Vincent
Wing Sing as to 30% and Affluent Block Limited as to 70%. Affluent Block Limited is in
turn ultimately and beneficially owned as to 20% by Ms. Hui Ka Man Emily, as to 15% by
Ms. Chung Sin Ying, as to 14% by Mr. Poon Chi Ho and as to 51% by Target Best Limited
respectively, of which Target Best Limited in turns wholly owned by Mr. Fang Anghong.
As at the date of this annual report, the board of the directors of Crown City Inc Limited
comprises Mr. Chan Vincent Wing Sing and Mr. Archambaud-Chao Percy.

2) Ms. Fang Saixiang is the spouse of Mr. Fang Anghong and is therefore deemed to be
interested in the shares owned by Mr. Fang Anghong by virtue of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, immediately following the listing of the Company,
the Company has not been notified of any person (other than Directors
or chief executive of the Company) or entity had an interests or a short
position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules for securities transactions by the Directors. Having made
specific enquiries with all the Directors, they have confirmed compliance
with the required standard as set out in the Model Code throughout the
year ended 31 March 2017.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed the independence of
all the Independent Non-executive Directors and is satisfied of their
independence.

it
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee, which comprises 3 Independent Non-executive
Directors, has reviewed with the management in conjunction with the
auditor, the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed the internal control, risk management and financial reporting
matters including the review of audited consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year ended 31 March 2017
contributed by the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases

- the largest supplier 12.3%
- five largest suppliers combined 29.1%
Sales

- the largest customer 19.9%
- five largest customers combined 42.5%

None of the Directors, their associates or substantial shareholders (which to
the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) were interested, at any time during the year, in the Group’s
five largest customers or suppliers.
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CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in information
of the Directors since 31 March 2016 are set out below:

Name of Director Details of Changes

Mr. Lan Zhi Cheng appointed as executive director of Winto Group
(Holdings) Limited (“Winto Group”), a company
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
8238) on 8 September 2016 and resigned as
executive director of Winto Group on 2 August
2017.

Mr. Leung Alex appointed as vice chairman and executive
director of China Healthwise Holdings Limited,
a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 348) on 20 March 2017.

Mr. Pang Siu Yin appointed as independent non-executive
director of Beijing Gas Blue Sky Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 6828) and Singapore
Stock Exchange (stock code: UQ7), on 21
February 2017.

Save for information disclosed above, there is no other information
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient
public float during the year ended 31 March 2017.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles, or the laws
of Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.
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AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers ("‘PwC") resigned as auditors of the Company
with effect from 19 July 2017 and Moore Stephens CPA Limited (“Moore
Stephens”) was appointed as auditor of the Company with effect from 4
August 2017 to fill the vacancy following PwC's resignation. An nomination
proposal will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company to re-appoint Moore Stephens as auditor of the Company.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
March 2017.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the event after the reporting period are provided under note 34
to the consolidated financial statement of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report of this annual report.

On behalf of the Board

Lan Zhi Cheng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 August 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B M AR

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

AFFLUENT PARTNERS HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Formerly known as Man Sang Jewellery Holdings Limited)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Affluent Partners
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
"Group”) set out on pages 65 to 139, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2017, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. Key audit matters identified in our audit are
summarised as follows:
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B ZEENRE (B)

Impairment assessment of loans and interest
receivables from individual customers
(Please refer to note 21 in the consolidated financial statements)

Key audit matter

RREITER

EREFEEERRRE 2 REFE
(B2 BEA IS RRME21)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

ERNETNANEEEEEE

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had loans and interest receivables

from certain individual customers (the “Individual Receivables”)
amounting to approximately HK$45,000,000 and HK$1,878,000,
respectively.

20173 A318 » ERERBE TERNEP 2 BKER KR
FE(MEBIFEHERFR ) 5 Bl #) 745,000,000 7T K 1,878,000
IE o

The management of the Group assessed the recoverability of each

of the Individual Receivables as at 31 March 2017 and concluded
that no impairment loss provision was required.
EEEEEEN2017F3A31 B E S E @B EUERF 2 7]
WM - W15 HAEwRABAELREEERE -

The impairment assessments of the Individual Receivables were
performed based on the credit-quality information about the
borrowers such as credit reports, personal wealth, and historical
income flows and repayment history of the individual debtors.
BRI R RETHEERERERAZ EEERERE
17 EERS - AT EAKLERNEBSANE L WA
R{EERE o

3
il

We have identified management’s impairment assessments of the

Individual Receivables as a key audit matter because the amounts
of the receivables were significant and the assessments required

exercise of significant management judgement and involved high

level of estimation uncertainty.

HIFIE S E TR E L8 B e W R FE 1T 2 BB RT T T R
B R REAREBUESSHEEBEAN - BABRFERES
BEELERAEL S KSR AT HEENE -

Our key procedures to address the matter included:

B2 EMEACBRIZF 81 -

—  Obtained the list of the Individual Receivables as at 31
March 2017 and discussed with the management of
the Group about their evaluation of the background
and financial capability of the borrowers and their credit
assessment that each of the amounts were recoverable;

— EBR017F3ANAZEARNERERZTE - ARk
H EEEEEBIWARRSHERASTRLYE
Be N1 2 FHE A R IR E S F SR RO S 2 FERHE

—  Understood and evaluated the internal controls procedures
of credit approvals, credit reviews and impairment
assessment performed by the management of the Group;

— BHELTE EEEEERENTIEESEM  FESE
& NORER h 2 AEPEIERE T

—  Challenged the management’s assessment of the
recoverability of the Individual Receivables and
corroborated their assessments by obtaining and reviewing
credit related information of the debtors from the
management of the Group;

—  EREREHERN KRR ATRE I 2 GG AR E R
it EEEEREESYBRNEKEAZEERBER
BERE ZFHE

—  where the loan monies were paid to parties other than the
borrowers, enquired about the relationships between the
borrowers and recipients and documentation concerning
the underlying reasons for such payment arrangements;
and

—  HERFEXM FERANINGEMT - ERERA
B 2 B B R A M B 1T 2 R B 2 ME R
mAR X &

—  Checked subsequent settlements of the individual
receivables, if any.

— BREMEREKERZREEEBTRI(NE)



Impairment assessment of loans to a third party
(Please refer to note 18 in the consolidated financial statements)

Key audit matter

HARETER
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IndependentAuditor’s Report (Continued)
B ZEENRE (B)

BE=REMZEERE

(B2 E MEIRKRMEES)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

ERNESTNAEERESE

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had loans receivables to a
company, which is an independent third party, amounting to
approximately HK$12,800,000. The Group had not recognised any
impairment losses on loans to third party during the year.
R201793A310 - EXERK—BIE=7TRFZER
#)7312800000/87C - RAFE - EEEIERE=7TER
R ERDREEIE -

The management of the Group assessed the recoverability of
loans to a third party as at 31 March 2017 and believed that no
impairment losses provision is required for the year.
2017630318 - EEEEREHMEE=FERZKE
% WRASAFEBA R EEERE -

Management assessed the provision for impairment of loans to a
third party based on the credit-quality information of the debtor
such as latest audited financial statements, latest management
accounts, cash flow forecast and valuation report of certain
properties.
ERERBEEFEAGELEREN(NROHPREXIBR

* BOHERRE  ReRs8RALETHEZHER
H)HEE=ZFERBERE -

We have identified management’s impairment assessments of
the recoverability of loans to a third party as a key audit matter
because the amounts of the receivables are significant and the
assessments required significant management judgement and
involved high level of estimation uncertainty.
BMEHERERE =7 BRI T 2 RER L HEE
REARETEE  RERREEZREEBEN - BAMTH
HEEERBIERERAE S K E Mt TN -

Our key procedures to address the matter included:

BMERIEEREA BRIZF 81 -

—  Discussed with the management of the Group about their
evaluation of the background and financial capability of the
third party and their credit assessment that the amounts
were recoverable;

— B SEEEBRENRAURSHE=STERNUE
BE N 2 FHE A R R F SR E £ 2 (F EFHE

—  Understood and evaluated the internal controls procedures
of credit reviews and impairment assessment performed by
the management of the Group;

— BEREME EREERRBETEEERLOREN G
Z N ERELFERE T

—  Challenged the management’s assessment of the
recoverability of loans to a third party; and

— EREEEMRE-SEFAREMEETZHE &

—  Obtained credit-quality information of the debtor from the
management of the Group as part of the assessment of the
recoverability of loan to third party;

— 1t BEXEEEEESEBAGEEREN  ER:T
ME=FEFRAIRE MLz —#5
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B ZEENRE (B)

Impairment assessment of trade receivables
(Please refer to note 18 in the consolidated financial statements)

Key audit matter

HARETER

As at 31 March 2017, the gross trade receivables of the Group
amounted to HK$72,095,000 and provision for impairment of the
trade receivables amounted to approximately HK$12,738,000.

An impairment loss of approximately HK$ 1,195,000 had been
recognised by the Group in the profit or loss for the year.
R20174F3 0310+ BERERWEAFER72,095000 7T -
e EFORER A /212,7380008 7T © BEEEERAFE
B rERREEE491,195000/8 7T ©

The estimated impairments were determined by the management
of the Group based on the credit history of the counterparties and
the current market conditions.

EEEERERBUF HEEREIBRSTNETRER
it

We have identified management's impairment assessment

of the recoverability of the trade receivables as a key audit

matter because the amounts involved were significant and the
assessment required significant management judgement and
estimation uncertainty.

HMERSEEERERE KRB ETT R EHEEE R
MREAER REARMSLBEBEAN - BVLFE2EEE
Y E R HIE e M AT -

PEWR & Rz m B 5P
(BB AP BRRME18)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

ERNESTNANEERHEEE

Our key procedures to address the matter included:

B2 EMEACBRIZF 81 -

—  Obtained the ageing analysis of the trade receivables and
discussed with the management of the Group about their
evaluation of the background and financial capability of the
debtors and their credit assessment that the amounts were
recoverable;

— BERREWERZERSN - LE S£EEEREENW
BREENEBAZ B S NN 2 s EAR RS S
A Ol ER 2 EERHE

—  Challenged the management’s assessment of the
recoverability of long outstanding and overdue trade
receivables;

— EREEEMRIREEOHEKE Nz rTlE
HEIT 2R

—  Reviewed credit related information of a sample of debtors
which were compiled by management as part of their
assessment of the recoverability of the trade receivables;
and

— HERAEEEREZEBACERBER  ERK
FrHhERER AR Az =50 - &

—  Checked subsequent settlements of the trade receivables
on a sample basis.

— WERERRERZRESESR -



Valuation of investment in unlisted fund
(Please refer to note 22 in the consolidated financial statements)

Key audit matter

HARETER

During the year, the Group invested in an unlisted fund which is
classified as financial assets designated at fair value through profit
or loss and classified as level 3 under the fair value hierarchy.
RAFER - BEEERE-BEIBRRCMEEZIELTE
T ZERMEERTERARAREFABRRIDBR/AAE
B E3E °

As at 31 March 2017, the fair value of this financial assets
amounted to approximately HK$13,620,000. Loss on fair value
change of approximately HK$630,000 had been recognised by the
Group in the profit or loss for the year.

R2017F3A318 - L2 REE 2 AR EK)413,620,000/8

TC o DA ERIEEEIA6300008TEHR BEEBRAFEZ

EESER ©

The fair value of the unlisted fund has been determined based on
the net asset value of the fund which was calculated based on the
fund’s assets made by reference to its market prices and minus
the value of the fund’s liabilities as at 31 March 2017.
FETESCARBERBES VEEFE(NBE2EH
TISERIEL 2 BEFEHE - WHER2017F3A31BZ
EcaEEBEIERE -

We identified the valuation of investment in unlisted fund as a
key audit matter due to the significance of the judgment and
estimates made by the management and the subjectivity in
determination of level 3 fair value given the lack of availability of
market-based data.

HRNE IR EPTIELIEN K fhat o EE M RAEFREIR TS HIR
BERATEEAREERIEZEEM  BMEHELTESR
B2 HEHTE ARRETEE -
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IndependentAuditor’s Report (Continued)
B ZEENRE (B)

FLmEESREZGE

(B2 MR E M EIRRME22)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

ERNESTNAEERESE

Our key procedures to address the matter included:

B2 EREIACBRZF 81 -

Obtained the statement of the unlisted fund as at 31 March
2017 and compared the fair value of the unlisted fund to
the net asset value as at 31 March 2017;
ESRMR20179F3A31B 23k EMES WK - WHERIF L
MEESZAABEER017F3A3BZEEFE

Enquired the fund manager for the size, number of
investors, investment strategy and dividend policy of the
fund; and

MESEBEATAESZRR REEAH REX
s M iR SR ¢ &

Evaluated the appropriateness of the valuation

methodology and assumptions based on the information
provided by the fund manager.
RIBEESERAREZER

tREM -

FHEAEARBR
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B ZEENRE (B)

Provision for inventories obsolescence

(Please refer to notes 10 and 17 in the consolidated financial statements)

Key audit matter

HARETER

REFERE
(HSMERAMBHRMEI0R17)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

ERNESTNANEERHEEE

As at 31 March 2017, the Group's inventories amounted to
approximately HK$66,661,000. Reversal of provision for inventory
obsolescence of approximately HK$10,566,000 was recognised in
the profit or loss for the year.

R201753A310 © BEEENFEXR66661,0008TT © [RE
Tr BB B E14910,566,00078 T ANF [E 18 5 HERR ©

Management of the Group assessed the provision for obsolete or
slow moving inventories taking into consideration of inventory
ageing, condition of inventories, historical and current sales
information, as well as different market factors impacting the
selling price of these inventories. In addition, the management of
the Group considered changes in prevailing market conditions,
expected market trends and customer demands.
EEEERETEREIFHETERE  UKERFER
B RN BERENHEEEN  URFEZERFE
EBZTRATSEE - I EXEEREBESEZRATH
N FEETSBEREFPHR2ES -

We have identified management’s impairment assessments of
the provision for obsolete or out-dated inventories as a key audit
matter because the amounts of inventories were significant and
the assessments required significant management judgement
and involved high level of estimation uncertainty.
HMEREREEYRESEHRFEREET ORENGHEE
AEARETFE RASFESHBEAN - BAMMNLE
EREELERAE LS ESE G THEEE

Our key procedures to address the matter included:

B2 EREAC BRZF 81

—  Obtained understanding of, and evaluated, the Group’'s
provision policy on inventories and basis of the
obsolescence assessment;

—  HEEEEHY EREZFERERRNRETEG
HAE

—  Reviewed and assessed management's process of the
identification of obsolete or out-dated inventories and
estimation of the net realisable value of these inventories;

— BARTMEEREERMIRESBIFE 2 MIEREZ
EFEREIRE A5

—  Evaluated historical accuracy of inventory provisioning by
comparing historical provision made to the loss incurred for
actual sales;

—  FBRLERAMERERERHEMELEE
BETFER M RN

¥

—  Reviewed inventory ageing analysis and analysed the level
of aged inventory and their associated provisions;

—  RAFEREOTESTBREERT RERRRE

—  Tested the purchase cost, selling price and margins of aged
and obsolete inventories on sample basis to the source
documents; and

—  BRXHHERABHEREFE ZRBRA - EE
KA &

—  Reviewed and evaluated net realisable value of inventories,
on sample basis, with reference to subsequent sales
information and the external price data and performed
testing on a sample basis, by tracing to the source
documents.

— RS AR 2R R E(K2RBREHESR
KR SNEBEAE BUR ) W38 38 38 R SO TR ScAROR) -



INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual report for
the year ended 31 March 2017 of the Group other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The audit committee of the Company assists the directors in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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\ndependent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B ZEENRE (B)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
alsor

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors of the Company.

$§%&Eﬁ?ﬁ%%‘f§%éﬂﬁ%$&%‘%éﬁ?¥(ﬂ%2
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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B ZEENRE (B)

HEERAKECE ST ERZREHIER
i ARRBARG 2 E N RERERE
FHEEFENBEREMIEATHEEL 1t
MAseEHY BREFELERNELE
REE © WMBEMRB/FEEATHEEE - B
AEZBERETIRBERE IR EA MG
WRT 2ABEREX(WERRET B EN
B2 ER - HAZ EmENBEZHA R
ERHIEFES 2 BEURE - A - RKE
BRI EEH BEREEAFELYE

AHESRAMERER CEBIHT N - Bk
AR BEEE UGS HRERES
BRRIERER 5 MR

5 ERERNERREFRBHIFENE
Be  EE2ENRE  LEESMBR
RBKRER - HMEE BEEETESIA
EBRHT HMI/BERAEREE
£

BMEEZZEQER(HTERE)HEZET R
B ML AR EANRER - BRAMESE
SR I AR BRI Z (R EAEREA -

BATREZZEeRREH  FHARMETE
BB M2 REREERER - WA R
WERARGTERMBLMEZ AAREREKEMSE
B UR(HER)HE L fiEeEaEnR 8 g
B e



64 . Affluent Partners Holdings Limited £2 E1ZRER LD 7

@
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B ZEENRE (B)

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Moore Stephens CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hung, Wan Fong Joanne

Practising Certificate Number: P05419
Hong Kong 25 August 2017
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
mEREFER

Year ended 31 March

BZ3A31ALLEE
2017 2016
HK$'000 HKS'000
FHB T T
Revenue WA 7 212,232 210,019
Cost of sales SHERA (158,081) (150,823)
Gross profit ES 54,151 59,196
Other loss — net Efth H —HEE 9 (1,060) (1,397)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEHTE A B 9 - 9,943
Selling expenses HERY (8,288) (9,294)
Administrative expenses 1THHAX (69,159) (69,010)
Operating loss SB[ (24,356) (10,562)
Finance income Bl s 25 74 123
Finance costs BA 75 Ak 2N 25 - (419)
Finance income/ (costs) — net s Es (RA) —F58 74 (296)
Loss before income tax BRETISTATES 18 10 (24,282) (10,858)
Income tax credit/(expense) FrisfiEe, (%) 12 396 (82)
Loss for the year AR T RRELFEEEE
attributable to equity
holders of the Company (23,886) (10,940)
Loss per share AARBRREGERER
attributable to equity
holders of the Company 13
Basic and diluted FEAFN#E S HK(7.48) cents 7Bl HK(4.05) cents 71l
The notes on pages 72 to 139 are an integral part of these consolidated ENR139B 2 Mt RiFE B mz 2 BELS -

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SEZHEWER

Affluent Partners Holdings Limited $2 512 R G R A 7

Year ended 31 March

BZ3A318LEFE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Loss for the year NEEEE (23,886) (10,940)
Other comprehensive (loss)/ income: Hth2mE(E18) W

Item that may be reclassified to profitorloss — AJFEE#T P HH 2 8z 2 HH

Exchange difference on translation of HABITONSETS 2 [ H = FE

foreign operations 982 (1,052)
Reclassification adjustment BHH B (668) =
Item that will not be subsequently BEETEE 7 E B 2 HE

reclassified to profit or loss
Increase in fair value of leasehold land and HELTHREFALEIEE -
building, net of deferred income tax MriEIE TS H7 F 58 - 3,686

Other comprehensive income for the year, AREZEH M 2R - KT F5E

net of tax 314 2,634
Total comprehensive loss for the year REFARRAIIRREN
attributable to equity holders of the ZHEEE
Company (23,572) (8,306)
The notes on pages 72 to 139 are an integral part of these consolidated ENE1398 2 M REFEMETRER 2 BEHD -

financial statements.
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As at 31 March
M3A318
2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TAT

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Prepayments and other receivables
Deferred income tax assets

Current assets

Inventories

Loans and interest receivables

Trade and other receivables

Current income tax recoverable

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Held-to-maturity investment

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Current income tax liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Net assets

BERAE

FRBEE

W% - BB KRE R

B RR B LAt FE e AR K
EEFSHEE

RBEE

FE

FEMCE R K ) 8.

P& L 5 35 e LAt W AR R
BNEA AT Y Bl P 1S A%
BAVERFARERZ
TREE
FAEZRDHKRE
RekERRE

REAE
FE S B0 e B At FE A BRK
BRI AE

REEEFE

REERRBRE

BEFE

15
18
16

17
21
18

22
23
19

20

5,695 5,075
11,528 3,534
1,001 1,090
18,224 9,699
66,661 102,491
46,878 -
75,731 63,182
652 -
42,774 -
7,976 -
54,342 163,931
295,014 329,604
23,153 23,938
- 1,708
23,153 25,646
271,861 303,958
290,085 313,657
290,085 313,657
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Conso\iqlated Balance Sheet (Continued)
REEERERE)

As at 31 March
M3A31H
2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx THAT

EQUITY RS

Equity attributable to equity holders  Z</7\ B] R EEFE(L#E 25
of the Company

Share capital &N

Reserves e

Total equity BRER

The notes on pages 72 to 139 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 65 to 139 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 August 2017 and
were signed on its behalf by:

Lan Zhi Cheng
BRI
Chairman and Executive Director

FTERHTTEE

24 3,195 3,195
286,890 310,462
290,085 313,657

F722 1398 ZHEREFA MR BB D

FOSE10ATHGA MEHRER D R2017F8 A 25
REEEoHEREETIR  YAHTHNESREK

BE

Archambaud-Chao Percy Henry Junior

Executive Director

HITEF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
MEEREER

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

RARRRELR
Property Accumulated
Share Share revaluation Translation losses
capital premium reserve reserve (note a) Total
e & SftHE N (Piza) @t
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
THL THL THL THL THr THL
Balances at 1 April 2015 01564 R18 2 & 2,663 280483 57,115 (170) (72493) 267598
Loss for the year AEEER = = - = (10,940) (10940)
Other comprehensive income: Eth2EME :
Exchange difference on translation BERNEBCERZE
of foreign operations - - - (1,052) - (1,052)
Increase in fair value of leasehold RETHRETARE
land and building, net of BE - REREAEH
deferred income tax el = = 3686 = = 3686
Total comprehensive loss fortheyear A5 E2ERBLE - - 3686 (1,052 (10940) (8306)
Release of property revaluation reserve & T3t RIEFHER
upon depreciation of leasehold land EENFEHREE
and building - - (1413) - 1413 -
Transferred from property revaluation ~ HEMBAREE
reserve to accumulated losses upon BbAERA
disposal of subsidiaries 2:tEiE - - (59,388) - 59,388 -
Issue of placing shares, net of share issue ~ E(TE &R (D » MBI
expenses (Note 24) BI7R% (MiEEo4) 53 53,833 - - = 54,365
Total transactions with owners BB NETIR HES 532 53833 (60,801) - 60801 54365
Balances at 31 March 2016 R0165F3A318 258 319 334316 - (1220) (22632) 313657
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Conso\idatpd Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)
REEREHRE)

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

AN FIRRER
Accumulated
Share Share Translation losses
capital premium reserve (note a) Total
RAER
BE  RDEE B fRE (FizEa) @5
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FHT FHET TR TRT THET
Balances at 1 April 2016 201654718 2 84 3,195 334,316 (1222)  (22,632) 313,657
Loss for the year AEEEE - - - (23,886) (23,886)
Other comprehensive income: Hot 2 EE
Reclassification adjustment BHDEAR - - (668) - (668)
Exchange difference on translation BRERINER
of foreign operations fER =R - - 982 - 982
Total comprehensive loss for the year AEEREEEESE - - 314 (23,886) (23,572)
Balances at 31 March 2017 R2017F3H31 B 2 8k 3,195 334,316 (908) (46,518) 290,085
Note: fifsE -

The People’s Republic of China (“PRC") laws and regulations require companies
registered in the PRC to provide for certain statutory reserves, which are to be
appropriated from the net profit (after offsetting accumulated losses from prior years)
as reported in their respective statutory financial statements, before profit distributions
to equity holders. All statutory reserves are created for specific purposes. PRC company
is required to appropriate 10% of statutory net profits to statutory surplus reserves, and
before distribution of its post-tax profits of the current year. A company may discontinue
the contribution when the aggregate sum of the statutory surplus reserve is more than
50% of its registered capital. The statutory surplus reserves shall only be used to make up
losses of the companies, to expand the companies’ production operations, or to increase
the capital of the companies. In addition, a company may make further discretional
contribution to the surplus reserve using its post-tax profits in accordance with
resolutions of the board of directors. As at 31 March 2017, the statutory surplus reserves is
Nil (2016: nil), as the PRC subsidiaries continued to make a loss since operation.

The notes on pages 72 to 139 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.

R ARAME([RE ) EEFEEREFREEMZ
AABHNETEELAES © Ih—SBER AT TR
P A ZFENFREFREER) P OIETR
FREZATEE - AT AESYERTEER - F
B AR ER S RAFE 2B s E AT Fs
Fz10ntEBEAEBHAES - EXATABRATEESR
FTEE A AS0%E - AR A AE I B AT RBA
e - ZEABATESREEARNBEARER  BX
NEVEEZEBESIEINARIEAR « B - AE A ARE
HESS VAR RERATBENNBHBRABSE—F
B - R201783 8318 AEBBATEE AT
(20165 « Z) - AR EMER R B L ERISERE
FrER

F72E1398 2 WX RER A TS RER 2 B -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

MERERER

Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before income tax
Adjustments for:
Finance income
Finance costs
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Exchange gain on deregistration of PRC operations of a
subsidiary
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment

Operating cash flows before working capital changes
Change in working capital:

Inventories

Trade and other receivables,

deposits and prepayments

Trade and other payables

Loans and interest receivables

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Cash used in operations
Interest paid
Income taxes paid

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposals of property,plant and equipment
Purchase of held-to-maturity investment

Interest received

Loans to a third party

Net cash inflow arising from disposal of subsidiaries

Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of share
Repayments of borrowing

Net cash generated from financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

The notes on pages 72 to 139 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

BEXBELCRERE
RS BAI AR
ANt

FBUA

FBRX

nEx  BERRETE

TEH-ZHBARNTRLERE L

T
S EHBL 2
WY\ BER o omaa

Hj%#’%i ﬁi)%& Al
LEESLHN I LERERE
% 45 :

JEH&% N Bt AR
& RENTUR
BT E R B R R
EREE RS
RATEH AR SBAR

REXBERES
EffHE
B FEH

BEXBEAZRERE

REZDELZRERE
BENF - BE k&M
HEMX B MREMEHR
BARBEISBRE

EWHE

FEEFE=T
HENBARMELRSRARE

REZED(ER)/ EEZREFE
MEEHEL2HERE
BOIREMETR

BERE
BEZDELZREFE

RERSERE(HYD) EMFHE

ENZREREARE
ExZH o PE

FRZBAERERAS

FENE1398 2 Mk AirE

Year ended 31 March
BZE3A31ALEE
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT
(24,282) (10,858)
(74) (123)
- 419
2,442 4042
(668) -
- (9,943)
1,356 =
183 6
(21,043) (16,457)
35,830 (3481)
(7,743) 8,645
(310) (5,772)
(46,878) -
(44,130) -
(84,274) (17,065)
- (419)
(1,875) (2,902)
(86,149) (20,386)
(3,550) (586)
30 61 76
(7,976) -
74 123
(12,800) -
- 55,148
(24,191) 54,761
- 54,365
- (1,000)
- 53,365
(110,340) 87,740
163,931 76,486
751 (295)
54,342 163,931

PSR 2 BB E S -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE MR R

GENERAL INFORMATION

General information

Affluent Partners Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was formerly
known as Man Sang Jewellery Holdings Limited. By means of a
special resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company at an
extraordinary general meeting on 26 January 2017, the name of the
Company was changed to Affluent Partners Holdings Limited, which
took effect from 15 March 2017. The Company and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) are principally engaged in the purchasing,
processing, designing, production and wholesale distribution of
pearls and jewellery products.

During the current financial year, the Group has commenced to
engage in the operation of strategic investment and financial
services segment, with the objective to include investments in
stocks, bonds and other forms of securities and other potential
investment opportunities, and also money lending business.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 13
May 2014 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Laws 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong changed
from Suites 2208-14, 22nd Floor, Sun Life Tower, The Gateway, 15
Canton Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong to Unit 2108, 21/F,
Harcourt House, 39 Gloucester Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong with
effect from 19 April 2017.

The Company was listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 17 October 2014.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, unless otherwise stated.

—REHR

— &
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MEAR(FE AEE ) EBWER TR LK
EELZEE NI - BE - £EREES

RAMBREE - AEBE DR EEREERE
KRBz EE  ERERBERER
m - EFREMTRAES  REMEERE
He  AREEE -

AQER2014F5 A13BRIEMASEES 1961
FEIFERRAE(REH RIEFT) F 2
EHERSHESIMAXIAEREEREE
~a] o i EE it ACricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies

have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless

otherwise stated.

(a)

(b)

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs"). The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for the financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 4.

Subsidiaries

(i) Consolidation
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

2

e M IRMTE(E)

EASTHEME
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AN CNIE]]
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(a)

(b)

AR

RAMBHRRDRRMBERZER
BT EE R ([ FBMEHRELED )
e - BERATEFAABERZER
BES  HEVBBRREELRAL

RELTT A B BYBME LR 2 F 5]
RAERETEZGF G - HIMA
EEERERAARESHBR ZBE
RYEHIE - % MBS H B B e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Subsidiaries (Continued)

(i)

Consolidation (Continued)

The Group applies the acquisition method to account
for business combinations. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group. The consideration transferred includes
the fair value of any assets or liabilities resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The
Group recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis,
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of
acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquire over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured
is less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase,
the difference is recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income and
expenses on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Profits and losses resulting from inter-
company transactions that are recognised in assets are
also eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Subsidiaries (Continued)

(c)

(ii) Separate financial statements
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs
of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

(iii) Disposal of subsidiaries
When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value
at the date when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an
associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker,
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified as
the executive directors that makes strategic decisions.

2

fRa ISR MR ()

EXETBERBER)

(b) HMiEE2TE (%)

(c)

(i) BIMERE
R B A E) 2 B IR AR BRI
B - KABREIREZBEER
B - B AR 2 EEREAR
AR E M R FE AR BAER o

11 AT LA S B R 3B B K S8 3 PO PR
BRRz2EWaE AR - i
VR 2R EREER B
BUBmRTREEEFE(R
BEE) 2REE  ASERR
MB AR ZREERER -

(i) HEMBEAF
REBREZEGIER  RERZ
ERRE SRR AT HIEE R

ZAREEHGE  ARKREE
“““““ HHEIRafER - MERARRD
2R BELERPHE
EZRBEZ  DAEBERVILRK
Eﬂﬁﬁ BEAN - SERTR B A 2 EU

mERRZERAE IR

HRNARE D ERLERHE
EXBEZTAAR - AR
REMEEMEEKVEERZ S
HEMOBRERS

Dﬂ? S)}
Ilkl'

PR &
BORBETNERABEREEER
RERBZABRE 2 - BEDE
BREHEZEDHRRZEFEE
RERERBEFELRBEREZNITE
=



76

?

Affluent Partners Holdings Limited $2E =R ER A 7

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d) Foreign currency translation

O]

(i)

(iii)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the consolidated financial statements
of each of the Group's entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollar ("HKS"), which is the Company’s
functional and the Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items
are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a hyper-
inflationary economy) that have a functional currency
different from the presentation currency are translated
into the presentation currency as follows:

(@) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(b)  income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of
the transactions); and

(c)  all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than leasehold land and
building are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to the consolidated income statement during the year in
which they are incurred.

Leasehold land and building are stated in the consolidated
balance sheet at their revalued amount, being the fair value
at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Revaluation are
performed with sufficient regularity such that the carrying
amount does not differentially from that which would be
determined using fair valued at the consolidated balance
sheet date. Any revaluation increase is credit to the property
revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it reverses a
revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognised
as an expense, in which case the increase is credit to the
consolidated income statement to the extent of the decrease
previously charged. A decrease in the net carrying amount
arising on revaluation of an asset is dealt with as an expense to
the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, on the property
revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that
asset. On subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued asset,
the attributable revaluation surplus is transferred to retained
earnings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(e)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Depreciation is provided to write off the cost or revalued
amount less accumulated impairment losses over their
estimated useful lives from the date on which they are
available for use and after taking into account of their
estimated residual values, using the straight-line method, at
the following rates per annum:

Over the shorter of the
term of the lease or
50 years

Leasehold improvements 25% —33%

Plant and machinery 20% - 25%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 25%

20% — 25%

Leasehold land and building

Motor vehicles

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount. Residual values and
useful lives are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within “Other loss — net” in the consolidated income
statement.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or assets not ready to
use are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at each reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemems (Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(g) Financial assets

(i

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following

categories: financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables and held-to-maturity
investments. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its

financial assets at initial recognition.

(a)

(b)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss comprise of financial assets held for trading
and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
A financial asset is classified in this category if it is
acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the short term. Derivatives are also categorised
as held for trading unless they are designated as
hedges. Assets in this category are classified as
current assets if expected to be settled within
12 months; otherwise, they are classified as non-
current.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They are
included in current assets, except for the amounts
that are settled or expected to be settled more
than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period. These are classified as non-current assets.
The Group’s loans and receivables comprise
‘trade and other receivables’ and ‘cash and cash
equivalents’ in the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(g) Financial assets (Continued)
Classification (Continued)

(i)

(©

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity dates that the Group
has the positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity other than:

(@) those that the entity upon initial
recognition designates as at fair value
through profit or loss;

(b)  those that the entity designates as available
for sale; and

(c)  those that meet the definition of loans and
receivables.

Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-
maturity investments are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses (see accounting
policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(g) Financial assets (Continued)

(ii)

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial asset is
recognised on the trade-date - the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at
fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership. Loans and receivables
and held to maturity financial assets are subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
the ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’
category are presented in the income statement within
‘Other loss — net” in the period in which they arise.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

(iii)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(g) Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment
(a)  Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications
that the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and
where observable data indicate that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(g) Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment (Continued)

(iii)

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

For loans and receivables and held to maturity
category of financial assets, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of
the asset is reduced and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
is the current effective interest rate determined
under the contract. As a practical expedient, the
Group may measure impairment on the basis of
an instrument’s fair value using an observable
market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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fRE I IRRMTE(E)

Affluent Partners Holdings Limited $2E =R ER A 7

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAESHBERMEE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(h) Financial liabilities (h) &RERE
Financial liabilities TREE
Initial recognition and measurement PG HER R =

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, at amortised cost, for as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value.

The Group's financial liabilities comprise mainly trade and
other payables and accruals.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Non-derivative financial liabilities — measurement
Non-derivative financial liabilities are initially recognised
at fair value less any directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these liabilities are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(h) Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Offsetting financial instruments

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the
difference in the respective carrying amount is recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events and must
be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the
event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group or the
counterparty.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(i)

1)

(k)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and, where
applicable, cost of conversion and other costs that have been
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition, is calculated using the weighted average cost
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
selling expenses.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less, in the consolidated
balance sheet.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

m

Current and deferred income tax
The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred

tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income statement,

except to the extent it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

(i)

(ii)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements in the
annual report. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill, the deferred income tax is not accounted for
if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

m

(m)

Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
(ii) Deferred income tax (Continued)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, except for deferred income tax liability
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

(iii) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the balances on a
net basis.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from sales of goods

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable
for goods supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and value
added taxes. The Group recognises revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when
specific criteria have been met as described below, the Group
bases its estimates of return on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction
and the specifics of each arrangement.

Sale of goods is recognised on transfer of risks and rewards of
ownership, which generally coincides with the time when the
goods are delivered to customers and title has passed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(m) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(n)

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount.

Retirement benefits scheme

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave
are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision
is made for the estimated liability for annual leave and long
service leave as a result of services rendered by employees up
to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"), the PRC based employees of the
Group participate in various defined contribution retirement
benefit plans organised by the relevant municipal and
provincial governments in the PRC under which the Group
and the PRC based employees are required to make monthly
contributions to these plans calculated as a percentage of the
employees’ salaries.

These plans are a state-managed retirement benefits
scheme being operated by the local PRC government. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute 10% to 15% of the
average basic salary to the retirement benefits scheme to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the specified
contributions.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Retirement benefits scheme (Continued)

The municipal and provincial governments undertake to
assume the retirement benefit obligations of all existing and
future retired PRC based employees payable under the plans
described above. Other than the monthly contributions, the
Group has no further obligation for the payment of retirement
and other post retirement benefits of its employees. The assets
of these plans are held separately from those of the Group
in independently administered funds managed by the PRC
government.

The Group also participates in a pension scheme under
the rules and regulations of the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme Ordinance ("MPF Scheme”), which is a defined
contribution retirement scheme for all employees in Hong
Kong. The contributions to the MPF Scheme are based on
minimum statutory contribution requirement of 5% of eligible
employees’ relevant aggregate income subject to a cap of
HKS1,500 per month, effective from 1 June 2014. The assets
of this pension scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in independently administered funds.

The Group's contributions to the defined contribution
retirement schemes are expensed as incurred.

Operating leases

Lease in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentive received from the lessor), including upfront payment
made for land use right, are charged to the consolidated
income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of
these leases.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company's shareholders or directors, where
appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

Amendments to existing standards and new interpretations
effective for annual periods beginning 1 April 2016, relevant to
the Group's operations and adopted by the Group:

Effective for
annual periods
beginning

on or after

HKAS T (Amendment)  Disclosure initiative 1 January 2016

1i# 38

e M IRMTE(E)

ﬁﬂ&@%ﬂZé%%ﬁﬁ
/\I

R2016F4 81 BB Z FEHMERK
HEAEBLEAEITEAEBRMN Y
HIRFERIFES R R FRE

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of acceptable

(Amendment) methods of depreciation and
amortisation
HKAS 16 and Agriculture: Bearer plants
HKAS 41
(Amendment)
HKAS 27 Equity method in separate
(Amendment) financial statements
HKFRS 10, HKFRS Investment entities: Applying
12 and HKAS 28 the consolidation exception
(Amendment)
HKFRS 11 Accounting for acquisitions of 1 January 2016
(Amendment) interests in joint operations
HKFRS 14 Regulatory deferral accounts 1 January 2016
Annual improvements  Annual improvements 1 January 2016
project 2012-2014 cycle

The adoption of the above amendments to existing standards
and new interpretations did not have any material impact on
the preparation of the Group's financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
APV BMERMTE(E)

3 APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 3 EAHRKEBIT 2EBUBR

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS LEXER|(4E)

(CONTINUED)

(b)  New standards and amendments to existing standards which by BEM/MEBIIEN2016F451HHIAZ
have been issued but are not effective for the financial year R FEAEMBEWRIRFHENZ FE]
beginning 1 April 2016 and have not been early adopted: AR N 38 B ZERIFT RIS A

Effective for RO RE
annual periods EPAC
beginning Bl EE
on or after BN
Amendments to Classification and Measurement of 1 January 2018 BAUBASEN  MRMBEEZNFR  08EIAIR
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment Transactions RETR)  BuoERiE
Amendments to Applying HKFRS 9 Financial 1 January 2018 BAMBEEEN  RREAUBESEY  08E1A18
HKFRS 4 Instruments with HKFRS 4 Insurance SR (BTE) R AR~
Contracts PEREARNERE
RRIEFERIA
HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments 1 January 2018 TRORREED  4RIE N18E1A1H
£9%(014%)
Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets between To be determined EAURRLED  REREABESAE T
HKFRS 10and an Investor and its Associate or Joint F0FREEGH PEENVEELE
HKAS 28 (2011) Venture* EAE8% Elfia-y
(fB3T) (201 )
HKFRS 15 Contracts with Customers 1 January 2018 BAMBEEEN  XPANZMA WSEIATR
Revenue from 155
HKFRS 15 Clarification to HKFRS 15 Revenue from 1 January 2018 BEUBRSEY  BAUMKREE 08F1A18
(Amendments) Contracts with Costumers SRR BsH-FPAL
LA
HKFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019 ERuBRSEl BE M9FIA1A
2168
Amendments to Disclosure Initiative 1 January 2017 EEgiE] R WIEIAIE
HKAS 7 STR(BTE)
Amendments to Recognition of Deferred Tax Assetsfor 1 January 2017 EhgHES FAEEBERAEL  07FEIA1H
HKAS 12 Unrealised Losses EOR(BITE)  WEAE
Amendments to Transfers of Investment Property 1 January 2018 BAEE A% WSEIATE
HKAS 40 FAK(ETE)
HK(FRIC) Foreign Currency Transactions and 1 January 2018 TEARNERS NMRAREARE  08F1A1R
Interpretation 22 Advance Consideration AEEEG)DE
£0%
HK(IFRIC) Uncertainty over Income tax 1 January 2019 BAERERRE SR AR  09F1A18
Interpretation 23 treatments ARZEL)RE RE
218
Annual Improvements  Amendments to a number of HKFRSs ~ January 2017 or 1 ERUHREEE  FAMBASEANZ  WUEIAIAR
to HKFRSs January 2018, as MAFENEF  BTEE M8FIAIA
2014-2016 Cycle appropriate ESTRENE (ER)
* On 6 January 2016, the HKICPA issued “Effective Date of Amendments * R20165F1 A6A « B ERES
to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28", following the International Accounting SEHMERBERE  BESHNAE
Standards Board'’s equivalent amendments. This update defers/removes B BBV BREENEI10RRES
the effective date of the amendments in “Sale or Contribution of Assets SEERE8R 2 MERTEM B - 3%
between an Investor or its Associate or Joint Venture” that the HKICPA FHRAEERE BUEESEMAE
issued on 7 October 2014. Early application of these amendments R2014F10 7B B[ & & B
continues to be permitted. BRAETEZENEEHESEE ]

ZAERTEM A - R EREELE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Further information about these HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is as follows:

HKFRS 9 (2014)

Financial Instruments HKFRS 9 (2014) introduces new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial assets. Debt
instruments that are held within a business model whose objective
is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows (the
business model test) and that have contractual terms that give
rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding (the contractual cash flow
characteristics test) are generally measured at amortised cost. Debt
instruments that meet the contractual cash flow characteristics test
are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVTOCI") if the objective of the entity’s business model is both to
hold and collect the contractual cash flows and to sell the financial
assets. Entities may make an irrevocable election at initial recognition
to measure equity instruments that are not held for trading at
FVTOCI. All other debt and equity instruments are measured at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL").

HKFRS 9 (2014) includes a new expected loss impairment model for
all financial assets not measured at FVTPL replacing the incurred loss
model in HKAS 39 and new general hedge accounting requirements
to allow entities to better reflect their risk management activities in
financial statements. HKFRS 9 (2014) carries forward the recognition,
classification and measurement requirements for financial liabilities
from HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities designated at FVTPL,
where the amount of change in fair value attributable to change
in credit risk of the liability is recognised in other comprehensive
income unless that would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9 (2014) retains the requirements in
HKAS 39 for derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
fRE I IRRMTE(E)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 replaces all existing HKFRSs revenue requirements. This
standard establishes a comprehensive framework for determining
when to recognise revenue and how much revenue to recognise
through a 5-step approach:

(1) Identify the contract(s) with customer;

(2)  Identify separate performance obligations in a contract;

(3)  Determine the transaction price;

(4)  Allocate transaction price to performance obligations; and

(5)  Recognise revenue when a performance obligation is satisfied.

The core principle is that a company should recognise revenue to
depict the transfer of promised goods and services to customers in
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the company
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

HKFRS 16 Leases

For lessees, HKFRS 16 introduces a single lessee accounting model
and requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases
with a term of more than twelve months, unless the underlying
asset is of low value. A lessee is required to recognise a right-of-use
asset representing its right to use the underlying leased asset and a
lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments. For
lessors, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17 Leases. Accordingly, a lessor continues
to classify its leases as operating leases or financial leases, and to
account for those two types of leases differently. The standard is
mandatorily effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019. Earlier application is permitted for entities that apply
HKFRS 15 at or before the date of initial application of HKFRS 16.

The Group is still in the process of assessing the impact of HKFRS
9 (2014), HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 16. The directors of the Company
believe that it is impractical to disclose the impact in these
consolidated financial statements until the Group has completed the
assessment.

The Group intends to adopt the above new standards and
amendments to existing standards when they become effective.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 2, the directors of the Company (the “Directors”)
are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods. The following are
the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key areas of
judgement that may have a significant impact in determining the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities.

Impairment of financial assets

Provision for impairment of loans and receivables

The policy for the provision for impairment of loans and receivables
of the Group is based on the evaluation of collectability and
ageing analysis of accounts and on management’s judgement. A
considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these loans and receivables, including the
current creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
customer or counterparty. If the financial conditions of customers
or counterparties of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting in an
impairment of their ability to make payments, additional provision for
impairment may be required. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
trade and other receivables and loans and interest receivables are
disclosed in notes 18 and 21 respectively.

Fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured
at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss excludes any interest received on the financial asset and is
included in the ‘other losses’ line item. Fair value is determined in the
manner described in note 22.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
APV BMERMTE(E)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less estimated selling expenses.
These estimates are based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of competitor actions in response to
severe industry cycles. Management reassesses these estimations at
the end of each reporting date to ensure inventories are shown at
the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Current and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact the current and
deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash
equivalents (note 19) and equity attributable to equity holders of the
Group.

The Group reviews the capital structure periodically. As a part of
this review, the Group considers costs of capital, its bank covenant
obligations and the risks associated with issued share capital and
may adjust its overall capital structure through the drawn down
of bank borrowings, the repayment of existing borrowing or the
adjustment of dividend to shareholders.

The Group does not have a target gearing ratio, but has a policy of
maintaining a flexible financing structure so as to be able to take
advantage of new investment opportunities that may arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include loans and interest
receivables, trade and other receivables, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, held-to-maturity investment, cash and cash
equivalents and trade and other payables. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments, which include market risk (foreign
exchange risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk, and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. Save for credit risk, the Group does not have written
risk management policies and guidelines. However, the board of
directors (the “Board”) meets periodically to analyse and formulate
measures to manage the Group’s exposure to different risks
arising from the use of financial instruments. Generally, the Group
employs conservative strategies regarding its risk management. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

(@) Marketrisk
(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s foreign currency assets, liabilities and
transactions are principally denominated in Chinese
Renminbi ("RMB") and United States dollar ("USS”).
These currencies are not the functional currencies
of the Group entities to which these balances relate.
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk arising
from the movements in the exchange rates of these
different currencies against the functional currencies
of the Group entities. The Group manages its foreign
currency risks by closely monitoring the movement of
the foreign currency rates. Most of the Group's business
transactions are denominated in HKS, USS and RMB.

The Group considers there is no significant exposure to
foreign exchange rate fluctuations of US$ as long as the
Hong Kong-United States dollar exchange rate remains
pegged. However, the Group is exposed to fluctuation
in exchange rates of RMB. At 31 March 2017, if HKS had
weakened/strengthened by 3% against RMB with all
other variables held constant, post-tax loss for the year
would have been HK$66,000 (2016: HK$44,000) higher/
lower, mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/
losses on translation of RMB-denominated receivables,
cash and cash equivalents, and payables.

6

fRa ISR MR ()

M¥RREEBERBK

AEEZTENBTABFERKEREA
B BRERMEMEBYIEER - HAFE
FAABRAZEREE FAZIERE -
RehFERRT  MENERREMBREMNRE
Ko ZEVHTAZF BN ARMERE -
ZEMB TR R ERBET SRR (SN
EREE B RENERRNERRR)
EFERRIABDESRR - MAEZERR
ZBEHENRTX - REERBRIN - AEEL
BEMFVAREERRNES - A &
Fe((EF2 ) EHRITEFADIT LHIFT
i RBEEARERERY B TAME
EZERBER - —RME - NEEGRERERR
ERRER TR - BEREERENERZE
R - RERARETHEE 25

(a) WmEEK

(i) HSEREE
AEBZINEEE AERR S
FEUARE(TARE ) RET
([ELDEHE - ZE B IEH
WEEHERZAEBTE 2D
REEEE - REBRBEZETR
BB EAEB TR 2NESTE
B - EC2[E R ) 2 INERPR ©
REEERERERERED) -
BIBEINERPR o KEBKIH
EBRSGHNET  ELRAR
BESTE o

FRA B LB TUIE RN
REER B #EEKETTIMNERE
KBRS o AT ANEEEAT
AREEEE &) 2 E K - 72017
F3[318  EAE EMEE %
BIAEBERAT  MBTEAR
WEBZ(E,FHE3% » ANEERRF
& B 1RSSR 466,000/ 7T
(2016%F : 44,000/ 7T) » EBR
BUARBHEZ BUERS - 38
e RERRE MENKRREES
FER U A1 -



98

> 4

Affluent Partners Holdings Limited $2E =R ER A 7

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a) Marketrisk (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Interest rate risk

Except for the cash held at banks, the Group has no
other significant interest bearing assets that would be
subject to change in market interest rate. The Group's
income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates.

At 31 March 2017, if interest rates on cash held at banks
had been 25 basis points higher/lower with all other
variables held constant, post-tax loss for the year would
have been approximately HK$43,000 (2016: HK$402,000)
lower/higher, mainly as a result of higher/lower interest
income on cash at banks.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk
arising from the listed equity securities and unlisted
investment fund held by the Group. Gains or losses
arising from changes in the fair value of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are dealt with in profit
or loss.

The Group manages its price risk by regularly monitoring
equity portfolio to address any portfolio issues promptly
and spreading price risk exposure by investing a
number of listed and unlisted equity securities.

At 31 March 2017, if the price of listed equity securities
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss had been 30% higher/lower with all other
variables held constant, the Group's post-tax loss for the
year ended 31 March 2017 (2016: Nil) would have been
HK$8,746,000 lower/higher.

At 31 March 2017, if the price of unlisted investment
fund classified as financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss had been 30% higher/lower with all other
variables held constant, the post-tax loss for the year
ended 31 March 2017 would have been $4,086,000
lower/higher.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on
a reasonable expectation of possible valuation volatility
over the next 12 months.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Creditrisk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a financial
instrument would fall to discharge its obligation under the
terms of the financial instrument and cause a financial loss to
the Group.

Credit risk mainly arises from loans and interest receivables,
trade and other receivables, held-to-maturity investment and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, cash and
cash equivalents.

In order to minimise the credit risk in respect of loans
and interest receivable, the Group has policies in place
for determining credit terms, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group monitors
subsequent settlement of each of the loans and interest
receivables and reviews the recoverable amount of each loans
and interest receivables at end of the reporting period to
ensure adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company consider
the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had loans due from three
individuals, which represented the entire loans and interest
receivables balance (note 21).

In respect of cash and cash equivalents, the Group will place
them in banks and financial institutions with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

As at 31 March 2017, the top five customers accounted
for approximately 53% (2016: 58%) of the Group’s trade
receivables balance.

Trade receivables included an aggregate amount of
approximately HK$13,922,000 (2016: HK$13,255,000) which
is neither past due nor impaired. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances. The top five customers
have long-term trading relationship with the Group. The
management of the Group believes that the amount is
considered recoverable given no recent history of default
of the customers, and the top five customers have good
settlement history under the Group’s individual credit
evaluations.

6

fRa ISR MR ()

MR ERERE B FERBER(E)

(b)

EEmEE
EERRESRIAHF I REES
BMTAEZGRETRE  ERAKE
BRSM BRI B o

EERRIZ2RNEEERLFE -
W E R R E M EWERR - HAEEE
HRE RATEFABERZEH
BENMNRBAERERRE -

RBEEEREMNE 2 EERREE
KK ARECHERRUAEEREE
G EEEI R EMEITER - B
REBURETE Y @B HETS - It
Sh - MBERR - AEEEREIAE
WER NS ZREENLRH SR
FEWE R M B 2 Al @B 58 - PARE
R 3L A B e & BB AF = SR (B &S
BeoBUMmE NARAREFERA - K
SHZ EERRABRE -

MR2017FF3 8318 - REEBE B ZIAREI
BAER - BI2ZEKRER NS4
R (BIFE21) ©

RRERFRREMT - AREK L
MEFEREBRRERTREETE
RRERERNZRIT R I TEHE -

MR2017F3A31H » AABPLAEE
FEUT &S 7R 4588 49539%(20164F : 58%) ©

ERERBRERGPITEREZ
48 58 #) /313,922,000 78 7T (2016 £F ¢
132550008 7T ) ° AEBE W ERZE
ERFEEEMERER  c AREFEAR
EEEYRBESHEER - AEEEE
[EHE - ERNZREREPITHLMER
i BEREBEASEEZEAEET
- ARABEFPHBRTERGH - W
ZEREWR ARIULE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
fRE I IRRMTE(E)

6

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Creditrisk (Continued)

(c)

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group.

Most of the Group’s customers do not have independent
rating. Trade receivables are continuously monitored by
assessing the credit quality of the customers, taking into
account its financial position, past experience and other
factors. Credit limits of customers are reviewed periodically.
In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has established credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts.

Liquidity risk

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s trade and
other payables, based on undiscounted cash flows (include
interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on rates current at the balance sheet date) and
the earliest date the Group can be required to pay.

The Group's financial liabilities have contractual maturities as
follows:

Maturity analysis — Undiscounted cash outflows:

On Less than
1year
DPR—F
HK$’000
THET

demand

HK$'000
TR

31 March 2017

201793 A318

6 MBEBREEEFERBKGE)

(b)

(c)

Between 1
and 2 years
—FEZEMF

HK$'000
THET

=& (&)

A H{E 0 R (B FY B M BR SR B AT 2 B
REEZBHER R RGO
EFAR -

AEBERBOEFHEFILERF
e BREFBETIREFPEER
g EEAMBRR  BELREE
AR - EREES - AQREH
BEHEPZEERE - REEEER
B AEEEEECDHRIERRE
EEELLEMEERR - BARRN
RETEBKBRER

RBETERE
TRETREERAARSERNERK
Hib AR T & KR HRRE -
HARBARBRASR(BREERALD
MEFK(WAFBME)REER 27
RAEZ M BN RANGE E A 1 &R
BEZRFAHE -

AEEFHRBEZANIMANT -

AMA DI — REIRBER

More than
5years Total
SZREF ast
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT THERT

Between 2
and 5 years
MEERF

HK$'000
THERT

Trade and other EREFH K
payables Hoh (S
A - 22,552 - - - 22,552
31 March 2016 2016%F3 A31H
Trade and other ERER R
payables H A LS
FRIA = 23,133 = = = 23,133
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fRa ISR MR ()

6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 6 HMKEMEEAERBEGE)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(d) Fair value estimation (d) AREME
The table below analyses the Group's assets carried at fair TRIEFAERNRBEZHEFMFTHE
values as at 31 March 2017 by level of the inputs to valuation ABRBRZER - DT AREER201743
techniques used to measure fair value. Such inputs are R3IBEARBEIRZEE - Bl
categorised into three levels within a fair value hierarchy as ABEDOBEARERB=EER
follows: U
Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for . HREESXBBEEERMSZ®
identical assets or liabilities (level 1). BOREHE)(FE1E) -
Inputs other than quoted prices included within level . BREENREIBZREN  BE
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either SBEZIEREE (BB
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived i (BUR B B8 I ABUE (%2
from prices) (level 2). [g) -
Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on - WIHKIBFIEETISEEMETE
observable market data (that is unobservable inputs) ZEBEXABBEHAEERIATT
(level 3). B AR (F3E) -
Fair value of the Group’s financial instruments that are BEEEMEED NFEFEZRE
measured at fair value on a recurring basis SMIAZATE
Details of the fair value hierarchy of the Group's financial BER2017F K2016F3A318 + A&
instruments at 31 March 2017 is as follows: BemTAEAFECERFBROT
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ERES EpE 38 st
Financial assets 2017 2017 2017 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THER THET THET THER
Financial assets at fair value though BATEF ABRK
profit or loss ZeREE
— Listed equity securities — EIRAES 29,154 - - 29,154
— Unlisted investment fund —kLTRERES - - 13,620 13,620

29,154

13,620 42,774
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
APV BMERMTE(E)

6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d) Fair value estimation (Continued)
During the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016, there were
no transfers between Level 1 and 2, or transfers into or out of
Level 3.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers between levels of
fair value hierarchy as of the date of the events or change in
circumstances that cause the transfer.

Note:

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within level 3 of fair value
hierarchy:

Carrying amount at 1 April 2015, 31 March 2016 and 1 April 2016

Additions
Net loss from a fair value adjustment recognised in consolidated
income statement

Carrying amount as at 31 March 2017

As described in note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements, the net asset value ("NAV") of the unlisted fund is
determined as at the close of business in the relevant market
or markets on each reporting date. The NAV is calculated
based on the value of the fund's assets and/or investments
quoted, listed, traded or dealt on any stock exchange,
commodities exchange or futures made by reference to the
exchange close price on the principal stock exchange for such
investments as at the close of business in such place on the
reporting date as of which such calculation is to be made,
minus the value of the fund's liabilities on the reporting date.

6

M EMRERE B FERBER(E)

(d)

N

N REE (&)
REZE2017F K2016F3 831 H IEF
B B ME2 FoEBEEE - e
EASBEHEIR -

REBZBRAN I BB 2 FH =X
BRI ERERATFESRZEZ
B -
GEX

RAFESREIRD 2 X FHEFEHRK

Unlisted
investment fund

*EMREEE

HK$000
TERT

MR2015F4 818 ~ 2016F3831H K&

201654 A1 B 2 BRE(E -
#n 14,250
REFE W AR Z A EFHE

EBFEE (630)
MR201783 318 2 BREE 13,620

HANERE M IS IRA M TE 2P - I L
mEEcEEFE(EEFERA
MmSHESHRE Mz 2 XEEE
RETE  BEFEIREBEESZEE
BEEE/INEMESFZ S B
RS ERSHBE - L B
BARGHREZBE(DNE2ERH
RERVEL R ERE A%t R
LBEBHEREREIBIFFIHMZ
RHBWTEREERREANZAE
BE)FE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(e)

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been

applied to the line items below:

Financial assets as per consolidated
balance sheet

Loans and receivables

Loans and interest receivables (note 21)

Trade and other receivables excluding
prepayments (note 18)

Cash and cash equivalents (note 19)

Held-to-maturity
Held-to-maturity investment (note 23)

Assets at fair value through profit & loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(note 22)

Total

Financial liabilities as per consolidated
balance sheet

Financial liabilities at amortised costs
Trade and other payables (note 20)

Total

FeEEREXRMY
TREE

BERREKRRE
FEUE R F S (KisE21)
FEUTE TR R EAth FEURBR X
CSERECINCIEIE))
Re RERRE(FIEE19)

BFEZIH
FrARRIEHRE (PRE23)

BAFEFABRRZEE

BAFEFARGEERZ
TREE (MiFE22)

st

GREEERERAY
tREE

BREERATECEREE

JE U B R R At FE A5 BR IR
(FftE20)

et

BRERESNEMTA

fRa ISR MR ()

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 6 HXEREEEERBEKE)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

SRTAZEFERCERRTIIE

B :

As at 31 March
M3A318

2017

HK$’000
FH

2016
HK$'000
TAT

46,878 =
80,208 58,866
54,342 163,931
7,976 =
42,774 =
232,178 222,797
22,552 23,133
22,552 23,133




> -’ 1 O% Affluent Partners Holdings Limited $2EiE R R A 7

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
APV BMERMTE(E)

REVENUE

Revenue from sales of pearls and jewellery represents the amounts
received and receivable from customers in respect of goods sold less
returns and allowances.

Interest income on financial assets including money lending
and held-to maturity investment are accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable.

The Group's revenue recognised during the year is as follows:

A
A B E DT R E HRE R A
B 2 RERRE RS -

MBEERRBERBAEIEREZHNE
WATHESERERAS MERERMEX -
AR L PIRSES E -

FACRHERAKEWALT

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FH&T

Sales of pearls and jewellery SR RIAEHE 210,179 210,019
Interest income from strategic investment and REGIGE N ETS RIS A B U A

financial services 2,053 -

212,232 210,019

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's operating segments have been determined based
on the information reported to the executive directors, being
the chief operating decision maker of the Group, that are used
for performance assessment and to make strategic decisions.
The Group's operating businesses are structured and managed
separately according to the nature of their operations and the
products and services they provide. Each of the Group’s operating
segments represents a strategic business unit that offers products
and services which are subject to risks and returns that are different
from those of other operating segments. The Group currently has
two operating segments:

(@)  Sale of pearls and
jewellery products

Design and sale of jewellery
products, and sale of pearls

(b)  Strategic investment Financial assets investment and
and financial services money lending

The executive directors assess the performance of the operating
segments based on a measure of segment results. This measurement
basis excludes the effects of non-recurring expenditure and of
corporate expenses from the operating segments. Other information
provided to the executive directors is measured in a manner
consistent with that in the consolidated financial statements.

7 HRPER

AEBZEENMERBANTES(BIA
SEIBLERRNBREZEREE A
FAE R A BIERT AR IR AE RS DR E
RERE 2 REXBIRIBE R EE LR
HeERERBBEIBILER - ARER
RED BT ER MR < REEEXGE
7 - BN EIHRA RN E ML D EL - &
KBRS AMELE D -

(@) HEDKE RETAHEEREE
KREEM m - AKRSHER IR

b) RERERY PHEERER
5 AR%% tEE

WITEFREDMEEZAEFHZEDH
R o WERIEEETBRBEENHIFLETN
SHRAERAS TR - BRETHATESZ
Hip B RHR EAR A M m AR AR 2 77 5

=
5 °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemems (Continued)

fRa ISR MR ()

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group had only identified
one operating segment — pearls and jewellery operating segment,
and hence segment disclosures are not presented.

7 HRPE R (&)

HZE20165F38318 LFE - $%@ LTETE
—EAEESH-LHLKELENTL -
EEHDEHEER -

An analysis of the Group's reportable segment revenue, results, assets, HZE2017F3A3HIEFE » REEKRLE
liabilities and other selected financial information for the year ended DEEID 2 A 2WmyEblEs - FE - BE -
31 March 2017 by operating segments are as follows: BEREMEETHEER ZOMIOT
Segment revenue and results DEBR AR L&
For the year ended 31 March 2017 BZE2017F3A31HLFE
Strategic
Sale of pearls investment
and jewellery and financial
products services Total
HEYHR ERIRER
KEEm B 3% RS gt
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET T THT
Segment revenue DEBA 210,179 2,053 212,232
Segment loss P EEE (11,529) (2,368) (13,897)
Interest income on short-term RATERZFIBBA
bank deposits 74
Unallocated corporate expenses ROBEEERE (10,459)
Loss before income tax KRR RIS (24,282)

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated
from external customers. There were no inter-segment sales in the
years.

Segment results represent loss incurred by each segment without
allocation of central administrative expenses including directors’
emoluments, certain other gains and losses and finance costs. This
is the measure reported to the chief operating decision maker for
the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance.

EXEHRZDBRAIEREIINEFEE 2K
& o MAFELED BREHEE -

DEEBIER D WMEL R - ELED
FRITHHAXBEEEHE - %:Fﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂlm
LEBLBEER ° IO EER LG
DHEEMAIBLLERRAZ B BHEE
o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
fRE I IRRMTE(E)

8 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Segment assets and liabilities

At 31 March 2017

Segment assets SEHEE
— Hong Kong — &
— The PRC —

Unallocated corporate assets ROMBEEE
Total assets RABERE
Segment liabilities SHEE

— Hong Kong — &k

— The PRC —
Unallocated corporate liabilities RAOMEEAE

Total liabilities A BELSE

8 ZEER(E)

ITHWEERER
R2017%3A31H
Strategic
Sale of pearls investment
and jewellery and financial
products services Total
HEDKRR REGRAR
REEM B AR At
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THERT THERT
155,413 99,249 254,662
22,104 - 22,104
177,517 99,249 276,766
36,472
313,238
(15,934) (1) (15,935)
(3,310) - (3,310)
(19,244) (1) (19,245)
(3,908)
(23,153)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and allocating
resources between segments:

all assets are allocated to operating segments other than
deferred tax assets, current tax receivables, certain deposits,
prepayments, and certain cash and cash equivalents that are
not attributable to individual segments.

all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than

certain accruals, other payables and receipts in advance that

are not attributable to individual segments.

Other segment information

For the year ended 31 March 2017

Amounts included in the
measure of segment loss
and segment assets

Additions to property, plant and
equipment

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Loss on disposals of property,
plant and equipment

Fair value loss on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

SR BERR D
BEMTTAZER

HEWE - BER
RiaZER

BAFEFARRRZ
ERMEEATEED
EEZER

e M IRMTE(E)

8 ZEERE)
PBEERBEE)
RERSPRARRD BEAMRER
—  BRWNBRFEBAE - ERATSH -
ETRS  BRRE URETRS
RESEE DT ABRSHBI - F
BARLSEEEENH -

— BRETESER  AEMNTEARE
AR EF ARSI - FTE R

BAREREDE -

HZE2017F3A31ALEE

Strategic
investment

Sale of pearls

and jewellery and financial

products
HEDKRR
BREEM
HK$’000
THET

services Total
RERER
B AR 7% et
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHET

3,350 - 3,350
(2,442) - (2,442)
(183) - (183)
- (1,356) (1,356)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
APV BMERMTE(E)

8 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 8 SEER(E)
Geographical Information hEER
The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and the PRC. The Group's REBTEREB NP REE o NEBIZH
revenue from external customers and information about its non- EE o ZzREEIINERPZWE NEBEIER
current assets by geographical location are detailed below: }EEERFYT
Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets*
REINE FMRZ W= FERBEE
2017 2016 2017 2016
HK$’000 HKS'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHIT FExT FAT
North America* e3¢ 87,320 68,722 - -
Europe BOM 51,064 51,741 - -
Hong Kong EB 28,139 25,217 15,067 6,530
Asian countries (excluding Hong Kong) a5/ BIR (T E3EES) 39,843 58,707 2,156 2,079
Others Hith 5,866 5,632 - =
212,232 210,019 17,223 8,609
* Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets. * IRBEETRIERLCHIBEE -
# Revenue from the transactions with one individual customer amounted to # HE017FE3831B L BEE - B—21F
HK$42,161,000 (2016: HK$30,597,000) was more than 10% of total revenue of the RIRBE X527 W A42,161,0008 7T (20164
Group for the financial year ended 31 March 2017, the customer is situated in 30,597,000 7T ) 15 75 £2 (B 48 UG A 10% LA | -

the United States of America (the “USA"), the revenue generated from the USA
during the year amounted to HK$85,448,000 (2016: HK$66,460,000). This revenue
was attributable to North America region of the sales of pearls and jewellery

BEMNREFEARE([EEH])  NEEHR
FEEE L 2 WA 585,448,000 7T (2016 4 -

products segment. 66,460,000/ 7T ) ° tIBIWAR M IHEL IR KLI
BERDBZIEMEEPIS -

9 OTHERLOSS - NET AND GAIN ON DISPOSAL 9 HiexH - FHERHE
OF SUBSIDIARIES Bt 8 A Bl Rl
(a) Otherloss - net (a) HttzH—F&E
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FBT
Exchange loss I H E518 (197) (1,467)
Fair value loss on financial assets at fairvalue  IRAFEFF ABRER Z S REE
through profit or loss N EZEEE BB (1,356) =
Exchange gain on deregistration of PRC FEE— K MIB A R
operation of a subsidiary R ST 2 BB g A 668 -
Loss on disposals of property, LEDE - BEREZEZ
plant and equipment [=gi=] (183) ©6)
Others EAftb 8 76

(1,060) (1,397)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

9 OTHERLOSS - NET AND GAIN ON DISPOSAL 9
OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (b)

The Group entered into an agreement with Mr. Cheng Chung
Hing, who was the chairman and the ultimate controlling
shareholder of the Group at the time of the transaction and
until 10 December 2016, to dispose of the entire equity
interest of Man Sang International Holdings Limited and Hong
Kong Man Sang Investments Limited, both being the wholly
owned subsidiaries of the Group, for a total consideration of
HK$55,665,000 which was determined with reference to their
financial positions as at 25 September 2015. The disposal was
completed on 25 September 2015.

fRa ISR MR ()

Hie i — FERHE
B B 2 BE A (&)

&5 B 8 2 Rl R

AEBHEBNE LA (RRPFEARE
2016F 12 A 10 AAREB 2% h&x
IR R ER BRI EAEE 2
BB RARREBRBIERERARR
EEREREBERARIZ 2R
LAE 7201599 B 25 H B ISR R E
LA55,665,00078 7T BRAE o HER2015
F9R25H MK °

Year ended
31 March 2016
HZ2016%F

3A31HLLEE
HK$’000
THET

Net assets disposed of: T EEEFE :
Property, plant and equipment Mz - B KR
Cash and bank balances & RERITHEER
Prepayments and other receivables TEfH Re EL A FE UK
Accruals and other payables TER R H A e K
Bank borrowing RITEE

Deferred tax liabilities RIEFTSH A&

Legal and professional fees for disposal of subsidiaries
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Satisfied by:
Cash

HEMBAREENERER

HEM B AR

AT A
Re

101,351

517

73
(9)
(44,200)
(12,858)

44,874
848
9,943

55,665

55,665
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
fRE I IRRMTE(E)

10 LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX

11 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING

Costs of inventories

Employee benefit expenses
(including directors’ emoluments) (note 11)

Auditor’s remuneration

— Audit services

— Non-audit services

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
(note 15)

Provision for impairment of trade receivables
(note 18)

(Reversal of provision for)/provision for inventory
obsolescence*

Operating lease rental on rented premises

Exhibition

Commission expenses

* Excluded from the cost of inventories

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

Salaries, wages and other benefits
Pension costs — defined contribution plans and
social security costs

10 FRAFGBLIRIE IR

TFERRA

EERAAZ(RIEEEME)
(Bff7E11)

%S

— EIZRTS

— IEEERHB
(Bf$7E15)

B &R ZRIERE
(FFzE18)

BEFERERERR), BiE

HEYEZEEHERS
REE
likaAE3

*

& TEMEMEF
BEZSRA—ERHEEI R
HERERAR

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT TR
142,922 111,834
56,340 62,599
3,300 1,080
378 476
2,442 4,042
1,195 2,907
*
(10,566) 5,961
12,787 11,543
5,008 5,268
1,175 1,440
TEEEFERAN

1 EEEINFAX(BRESEHE)

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET THT
50,820 55919
5,520 6,680
56,340 62,599
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

11 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (CONTINUED)

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group
for the year include 2 resigned directors (2016: 3 directors) of the
Company whose emoluments are set out in note 33 below. The
emoluments of the remaining 3 (2016: 2) individuals and 2 resigned
directors who has remained as employee of the Group are as follows:

e M IRMTE(E)

11 ﬁg%ﬂﬁﬁ%@%%%%ﬁ)

FEEEHFMAL

FR - AEEREESTHALEEREE
BHEQQ016%F : =ZR)AREIESE - HEZN
SHR T XM - HBB=F(2016%F : W
FIANLERRUBEAAEBE T ZEEET
EE2MenT :

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx THAT

Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEMEMEF 4,324 2,906

Pension costs — defined contribution plans BESKA—FREFETEIR
and social security costs = RER AR 75 32
4,399 2,938

Except for the director remuneration disclosed at note 33, the
number of the remaining 5 (2016: 2) individuals whose remuneration
fell within the following bands is as follows:

BINH R E 2 EEBE - BN TIH
IR 2 TS (20167 B ) AT A
T

Number of employees

EBEAH
2017 2016
HK$500,000 — HK$ 1,000,000 500,0007 7T 2 1,000,000/ 7T 4 =
HK$1,000,001 — HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7T & 1,500,000 7T 1 2

During the year ended 31 March 2017, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to the five highest paid individuals, including directors, as
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office (2016: nil).

HZE2017F3A31BEFE - AEEWER
TEamERFMAL(BIEES) L ERB
T EARSIEMAR AR EB 2 48
Ehak BB A 2 (20164F « ) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
fRE I IRRMTE(E)

12

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE

12 FIBHESR) X

2017 2016
HK$'000 HKS'000
FExT FBT
Current income tax: BUERFRSHL
Hong Kong profits tax EBFNER 157 1,285
PRC corporate income tax RPN EMRER 4 233
161 1,518
(Overn)/under-provision in prior year: BEFE (BREEE)  BETR
Hong Kong profits tax BTG 891 (923)
PRC corporate income tax AR TS A (1,537) =
(646) (923)
Deferred income tax: RIEFTSH
Net (credit)/charge for current year REE () FAFE
(note 16) (FtzE16) 89 (513)
Income tax (credit)/expense Frisfi(Ee) Fx (396) 82

Hong Kong profits tax
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at a rate of 16.5% (2016:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the year.

PRC corporate income tax

In accordance with the relevant PRC corporate income tax laws,
regulations and implementation guidance note, subsidiaries in the
PRC are subject to the PRC corporate income tax rate at 25% (2016:
25%).

Withholding tax on distributed/undistributed profits
The PRC tax law imposes a withholding tax at 10%, unless reduced
by a tax treaty, for dividends distributed by PRC subsidiaries to its
immediate holding company outside the PRC for earnings generated
beginning on 1 January 2008.

Deferred income tax liabilities has not been recognised for
withholding tax that would be payable on the unremitted retained
earnings of certain PRC subsidiaries as the Company controls the
dividend policies of these subsidiaries and it is not probable that
these subsidiaries would distribute earnings in the foreseeable
future.

g VI
EBFERTIRIBEARFEE Z (BT EARBE T
T R165%(2016%F : 165%)51H

PETEMER
RIERETRRCEMEHERE  ROILREE
85|« REIIEB A R ZERTE25%(20165F
25% ) MR B> TS TR o

B2 KD IREFR 2 FEINB
B2008F1 A1 B @ BRIERBERIEIEN T
LURA - AEFGERER BB AREES
B EE R BREINE IR A R DR E
BN 0%TEFR

RN 2 B il b B B A B 2 BB BUR
Bt EH B R R AARIBER A R KD Ik A
A B EAASHE TP EMNERR RS
PEREE BAI S 2 R RIREASH A

f&°
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M IRMTE(E)

12 INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE 12 FSHGESR) BX (&)
(CONTINUED)
The amount of taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to the AEEFIER S TS A EIE 2 SR
loss before income tax as follows: ™
2017 2016
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FAT
Loss before income tax bR ETIS T AT 1R (24,282) (10,858)
Tax calculated at domestic income tax rate of R PTIS BRR 16.5%
16.5% (2016: 16.5%) (2016%F : 16.5%)5tE 2 Hi1E (4,007) (1,792)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating  FAE At EhEMER LiE 2
in other jurisdictions NI GER vd =Z (1,000) (89)
Tax effect of: TRiss2
Expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose TRIHF 2 Fx 1,354 927
Income not subject to tax BRI (123) (1,794)
Tax losses not recognised as deferred income M AMERIEEFSHEEZ
tax assets TiIEEE 4,741 3,597
Utilisation of tax loss not recognised previously B ST R AR MR IE S 18 (631) =
Over-provision in prior years B FEBRERE (646) (923)
Others Hi (84) 156

Income tax (credit)/expense KREFZFREFH(KR), X (396) 82
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
fRE I IRRMTE(E)

13

14

LOSS PER SHARE 13 BREE
Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss attributable to GREREBTIEA R IR R (L EERRF
equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of A B TE R 2 NEFEEETE -

ordinary shares in issue during the year.

2017 2016

Loss attributable to equity holders of the Company — ZN/A F1A% R fE (5 518
(HK$'000) (F#7T) (23,886) (10,940)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for MEtESREREETAZ

the purpose of calculating basic loss per share TR & (TR
(thousands) 319,521 269,819
Basic loss per share (HK cents per share) B E AN EE (FROE) (7.48) (4.05)

No dilutive effect to the loss per share as there were no potential HREZE20177F3A31AEFEMBEED
ordinary shares in issue for the years ended 31 March 2017 (2016: EITERAR(2016%F © M) - MU mEBRE
No). BEAHELE -
DIVIDEND 14 BRE
The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for EEGTEZMHEE2017F3831BLEFE

the year ended 31 March 2017 (2016: Nil). IR REARR 2. (201645 « &) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M IRMTE(E)

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15 Y% BERRE

Leasehold Furniture,
land and Leasehold Plantand fixtures and Motor
building  improvements machinery equipment vehicles
MELH e i
REF BTRE HERES RERSE il E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
Tir THr THr TiHr TiHr BT
At 1 April 2015 ®2015F4A1H
Cost KA - 3007 26974 1295 487 31,763
Valuation fibfE 95,000 - - - - 95,000
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE - (1491) (22316) (960) (115) (24,882)
95,000 1516 4658 335 372 101,881
Year ended 31 March 2016 BZE2016F3A31HILEE
Opening net book amount FHRESE 95,000 1516 4658 335 372 101,881
Additions NE - 3814 324 199 63 4400
Disposals HeE - - 0 (23) (57) 82)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAF (98,000) (3351) = = - (101351)
Depreciation G- (1414) (987) (1,200) (284) (157) (4,042)
Increase in fair value AR 3,000 - - - - 3,000
Eliminated on revaluation Efagiseafs] 1414 - - - - 1414
Exchange differences ERER - (14 (77) (29) (26) (145)
Closing net book amount FRREFE - 978 3703 199 195 5075
At 31 March 2016 #2016F3A318
Cost A = 2976 26,835 1,244 433 31,488
Accumulated depreciation 2:HiE - (1,998) (23132 (1,045) (238) (26413)
= 978 3703 199 195 5075
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
fRE I IRRMTE(E)

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 Y% - BERRME(E)
(CONTINUED)
Furniture,
Leasehold Plantand fixtures and Motor
improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
e B >
BFEE KRR S EERRE RE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TR TET TR THET
Year ended 31 March 2017 HZ22017E3831ALEE
Opening net book amount ENERFE 978 3,703 199 195 5,075
Additions NE - 897 3 2,650 3,550
Disposals e - (149) (48) (47) (244)
Depreciation Vil (451) (1,172) (148) (671) (2,442)
Exchange differences EE (13) (208) - (23) (244)
Closing net book amount ERREFE 514 3,07 6 2,104 5,695
At31 March 2017 12017634318
Cost XA 2,053 22,953 650 2,986 28,642
Accumulated depreciation ZHME (1,539) (19,882) (644) (882) (22,947)

514 3,071 6 2,104 5,695




Annual Report 2017 3§ u1 170

0

-

e -
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M IRMTE(E)

16 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 16 EILEREBH
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a BAEAE BTN SR AN IEEER
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current HEREREEN  BIELEHRERSRRE—
tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same B - AR REMSMEER BE
fiscal authority. GRS o
The followings are the major deferred income tax liabilities/(assets) AREBREZE2017F3A31HIEFERER
recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the year TERELEMESHAEE(BE) REESHT
ended 31 March 2017. o
Timing
differences
Revaluation arising Unrealised
of from tax profitin
properties  depreciation inventories Total
REH
BEME  NERERE FEER b
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FAEL TAT FAET FET
The Group REH
At 1 April 2015 R2015F4 818 12,295 193 (935) 11,553
Net credit to consolidated SAGAMER
income staternent s (165) (152) (196) (513)
Net charge to equity Eill=p Tk 728 = = 728
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWNERR] (12,858) = = (12,858)
At 31 March 2016 201663 H31H - | (1,131) (1,090)
Net (credit)/charge to consolidated GUNVEIEE A6
income statement HER - (113) 202 89

At 31 March 2017 7201738318 - (72) (929) (1,001)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AN
IN=

16

17

PR ERER M A ()

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

At 31 March 2017, the Group has unused tax losses of HK$28,065,000
(2016: HK$21,277,000) available for offsetting against future
profits. No deferred income tax asset has been recognised with
respect to the total unutilised tax losses of HK$28,065,000 (2016:
HK$21,277,000) due to unpredictability of future profit streams. Tax
losses of HK$28,065,000 (2016: HK$21,277,000) have no expiry.

Deferred income tax liabilities has not been recognised for
withholding tax that would be payable on the unremitted retained
earnings of certain PRC subsidiaries as the Company controls the
dividend policies of these subsidiaries and it is not probable that
these subsidiaries would distribute earnings in the foreseeable
future. The PRC subsidiaries have been incurring losses since
operation and there was no distributable retained earnings for the
year ended 31 March 2017 (2016: Nil).

INVENTORIES

Raw materials BEAE
Work in progress EERH
Finished goods B

16 IEIEFTSH (&)

HR201793 4318 + NEEH 28,065,000/ 7T
(2016%F = 21,277,00056 70 ) ] B{EHE #5R 2K
wmAZ KRB AHIEESE - AREEERK
s ISR+ B 8 5k A 228,065,000 7T
(20164F : 21,277,000 70 ) HERIRIE FA1S T
B E o FTHE 18280650007 T (2016 4F ¢
21,277,000 7T ) W0 £ & B 8f o

AR R R BB A R 2 B B EUR -
BB RHIB AR TN KRAIRER ] RAG D k2
o A ERETHBRAG 2 REEREE
Mz EBAENRERELSHRAE - 84
B PEIMIB AR —EHELEE  WE
F2017F3A3NBIEFEWEA D IRIREA
F(20165F : f#) o

17 8

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TR
10,864 14,582
2,297 3,146
53,500 84,763
66,661 102,491
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M IRMTE(E)

18 EWEFK

{‘HEELI&EE'TA BZ%

AND PREPAYMENTS REMNHE
2017 2016
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FExT FET
Trade and other receivables, deposits and R E F N i RIS BR X
prepayments (note a) e AN FRIE(HFEa) 74,459 66,716
Loans to a third party (note b) BEEFE =7 (FZb) 12,800 =
87,259 66,716
Less: Non Current portion W SEREIER S
Trade and other receivables, deposits and U E RN A R UK BR X
prepayments (note a) e AN FIA (K REa) (3,728) (3534)
Loans to a third party (note b) BEEEE =7 (Kizb) (7,800) -
(11,528) (3,534)
75,731 63,182
Note: MIaE -
(@)  Trade and other receivables, deposits and prepayments @ FEYRERREAMEYER ke RkiE
(N

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and other receivables,
deposits and prepayments are denominated in the following

currencies:

Hong Kong dollar
Renminbi

United States dollar
Others

REREZ R ER R E YRR - e R
BNRIBEZREEA NS

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHETT

T 22,824 12,457
AR 3,450 4,162
e 47,205 50,071
HAm 980 26
74,459 66,716
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
APV BMERMTE(E)

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS
AND PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

18 BRERKEMERERNR - £E
REMNKEE)

2017 2016

HK$'000 HKS'000

FET FETT

Trade receivables — gross FEWE R — 258 72,095 65,191
Less: provision for impairment of R RN E SR E R

trade receivables (12,738) (11,543)

Trade receivables — net R E T — F58 59,357 53,648
Other receivables, deposits and HEWERR - R2e Kk

prepayments (note) FaftRRIE (PEE) 15,102 13,068

Trade and other receivables, deposits and IS ZN N E b EURBR X -
prepayments Re RIERHKIEA 74,459 66,716

o IERBE D

Less: Non-current portion

Prepayments TAfIFRIE (3,728) (3,534)

(3,728) (3,534)

Current portion mENEs D 70,731 63,182
Notes: P et

The Group grants a credit period of 30 days to 120 days to its customers. The carrying
amounts of the trade and other receivables approximate their fair values as these
financial assets, which are measured at amortised cost, are expected to be received
within one year.

At each balance sheet date, the recoverability of the Group's trade receivables due from
individual customers are assessed based on the credit history of its customers, their
financial conditions and current market conditions. Consequently, specific impairment
provision is recognised.

The Group has provided fully for all receivables when the receivables
are long outstanding. When the Group has determined that such
balances are not recoverable, in which case the impairment loss
is directly written off against the corresponding trade receivables.
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number
of independent customers that have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience and the Group’s assessment,
management believes that no impairment provision is necessary in
respect of the remaining balances as there had not been a significant
change in credit quality of such receivables and the balances are
considered fully recoverable.

AEBAEZEFEE0AE 12082 FHEES - &
hERREMmERERZERAEELE AR ERS
REABZEIREHN AT 22 MIEEEBRBN—
FAWEE

REBER - AEERKIER TP 2 BIKRERA K
EHETRIEE P 2 E RS - MR KB AR
FHiE o BRIRER BRI IRERS -

RUFERAERAREER  ~AKERMEE
WEEREHEE  EAKERRUFEHRT
e - FERERT - REERRE &R
FEFEW B RIS - CRBIEARRE 2 YRR
FRBEETEAEBERG RIFEECHE 2B
VEP - RIBBEEREAREZFHE &
BEREHARZSERELRERE R
AR SRIER EEERYBREAELS
Bk ERHEAR AR 2R



Annual Report 2017 %%k U1 2 -i—
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fRa ISR MR ()

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 18 EWERREMEWKERR &S

AND PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED) I8 4 508 ()
Movements in the provision for impairment of trade receivables are EREFRERESZHNT -
as follows:

2017 2016

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FTExT FHT

At beginning of the year RER 11,543 8,733
Provision for impairment losses B E B 1,195 2,907
Amounts written off as uncollectible B A W B i 8 <2 58 - (97)
At end of the year REXR 12,738 11,543

The provision for impairment losses on trade receivables have been
included in ‘administrative expenses’ in the consolidated income
statement. Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally
written off, when there is no expectation of recovering additional
cash.

Included in trade and other receivables of the Group are trade
receivables of HK$72,095,000 (2016: HK$65,191,000) and their ageing
analysis based on invoice dates is as follows:

R E R 2R EE R B AGRERERZ
[T ] - A EHEEINRE - &
ANEERRZ S — RSB -

FTARS B RIS R E A EYER A 2
W E 5K A72,095,00078 70 (2016 4F = 65,191,000
BIL) o WERFIBBREZEH KRR
ms

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000

THExT FET

0 to 60 days 0Z260H 26,887 24,422
61 to 120 days 61Z2120H 11,598 7,817
Over 120 days 1208 LA = 33,610 32,952
72,095 65,191

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide

range of customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

RBHTARE 2 EMERFOS K % 2 W B
REFEBEZ TREP
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
APV BMERMTE(E)

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS
AND PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

As of 31 March 2017, trade receivables of HK$45,435,000 (2016:
HK$40,393,000) were past due but not impaired. These relate
to a number of independent customers for whom there is no
recent history of default. Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment provision is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality of these receivables and the balances are still considered
fully recoverable. The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as
follows:

wHI1 Z=60H
#H61 521208
B HAERE 1208

1 to 60 days past due
61 to 120 days past due
More than 120 days past due

As of 31 March 2017, trade receivables of HK$12,738,000 (2016:
HK$11,543,000) were impaired and provided for. The individually
impaired receivables mainly relate to customers which are in
unexpectedly difficult economic situations. The ageing analysis of
these receivables is as follows:

#HI6121208
wHIBE1208

61 to 120 days past due
More than 120 days past due

18 BEURERKEMEWERR &€
REMNKEE)

R2017F3 8318 + EUE FK45,435,00078 7T
(20164F : 40,393,00078 7T ) /& B B HA{B K5
B ERKEREZEZBYESEM - M
HEMPW EHRERLE - RIFBEL
5 TIEEREOERESERELRER
% REAZERUEREEEERTESEX
BB BRSESRPE BRI 2IURE - it
ERWER ZREDITAT

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
Tz TAT
26,579 16,094
7,054 5255
11,802 19,044
45,435 40,393

201793318 + EUIREK12,738,00078 7T
(2016%F : 11,543,000/ 70) AERAE KRBT
R - ERIREZ RUAR R E B EENTE
B2 IMOERR Z BREHR - WERIEER
ZERERHTINT -

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT THET
1,000 93
11,738 11,450

12,738 11,543
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS

AND PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Loans to a third party

e M IRMTE(E)

18 BRERKEMEKRERNR - £E

I8 4 508 ()

b EEEE=T

Non Current Portion EmENER D
Current Portion mENE
Total 4=t

The loans to a third party company (the “Third Party Company”) as
at 31 March 2017 are interest bearing at 5% per annum, unsecured
and the carrying value approximate to its fair value. Included in
the loans consist of HK$7,800,000 that is denominated in the
United States dollar, the term of the loan is two years of which the
balance is repayable over one year. The remaining HK$5,000,000 is
denominated in Hong Kong dollar and is repayable within one year.

On 18 April 2017, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to acquire 33% of the entire issued share capital of a
target company at an aggregate consideration of HK$79,200,000.
The target company is an investment holding company whose
principal asset is its holding of the entire equity interests of the Third
Party Company. The Third Party Company is a private company
domiciled in the Republic of Korea (“South Korea”) and its principal
activity is the manufacture, export, and sale of fruit juices and other
functional beverages in South Korea. The transaction was completed
on 10 May 2017 and the then third party debtor became an associate
company of the Group (Note 34).

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT THT
7,800 -
5,000 -
12,800 -

R2017F3A31H  BEZEFE=ZFR([E
=HRED) 2 ©EIRFEFEKTE - BE
ERBBEAERENTEIES - EREIEN
FEITEHE 2 7,800,000/ 7T Emﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ
WK —F1&IEE - #2 15,000,00078 7T A B K&
FHET R —FREE -

R2017F47188 » AEEBRIY—1HE
ERZEUANBERAR 2B BITRA Y
33% 4 1&@?7%79200000,%75 EREYNIV]
KEERAR FBEEAEREE=FAA
RIZ2ERARER - EZARAIANUKER
B[R] ARELALERA]  MEXEE
HAREERERAREMNEEER R 2
e HARMEE - ZXBER2017F5810
HEK @ MERZE=FEBAKALNER
2B N T (MIRE34) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
APV BMERMTE(E)

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

19 RERZERRE

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$'000
Tz TAT

Bank balances and cash

The carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents approximate

to their fair values. The carrying amounts of cash and cash
equivalents are denominated in the following currencies:

RITRBERE

54,342 163,931

+

4

RehFERARSZRAERAQAERESE -
RERERBEATIIEEE

Hong Kong dollar BIT
Renminbi AR
United States dollar e
Others HA

The conversion of RMB-denominated balances into foreign
currencies and the remittance of such foreign currencies
denominated bank balances and cash out of the PRC are subject
to relevant rules and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government.

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
35,089 114,458
5,583 7,130
11,481 38,204
2,189 4,139
54,342 163,931

RAANRBEHE 2 B8R LR RINEL # 1t F
DSNEFHEZ RITHRBNIIRSELPE - 8
38T R BT LS NE & 1 28 M 2 AR RS AR A1 K2
B o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fRa ISR MR ()

20 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 20 ERNEFREEAER

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHERx FHET
Trade payables ENER 8,543 8,648
Accrued payroll and employee benefits FEET TN X R & 18 A 6,427 7471
Other payables HAb FERTRRTR 7,582 7014
Other accruals EfbpEstER 601 805
23,153 23,938

The ageing analysis of trade payables based on invoice date is as ENEFRBEZRAZREITOT -

follows:

2017 2016
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET FiET
0 to 60 days 0Z260H 6,958 4,019
61 to 120 days 612120H 145 1,285
More than 120 days Hi@1208 1,440 3,344
8,543 8,648

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables approximate to ENERREMENERCREEEEAR

their fair values, and are denominated in the following currencies: BRE - WA THEBE :

2017 2016
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET FBT
Hong Kong dollar BT 15,916 12,202
Renminbi AREE 3,979 6,601
United States dollar ESViH 3,240 5,097
Others HAith 18 38

23,153 23,938
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
APV BMERMTE(E)

27 LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

FEREMRRFE

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$'000
Tz TAT

Loans to individuals

Less: impairment loss recognised

All loans are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The loans
receivable carry effective interest rate ranging from 18% to 19% per
annum (2016: Nil). A maturity profile of the loans receivable (net of
impairment loss recognised, if any) at 31 March 2017, based on the
maturity date is as follows:

m{ERIA LRt ZER
Interest receivables M FEETF B

W EHERIRERE

45,000 =
1,878 =

46,878 =

46,878 =

FIEERE B THE - BNERZ BRE
IR F18%Z20% (20164F : ) o 532017
F3A318 - KBS ZEKRER(NR
EHRREBE - 8 BB RAT

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$'000
TExT TAET

Current assets REEE

Mature within one year —F N EIHf

At 31 March 2017, the loans to customers were unsecured personal
loans and not subject to any personal guarantee.

In determining the recoverability of the loans receivable, the Group
considers any change in the credit quality of the loans receivables
from the date credit was initially granted up to the reporting date.
The management has assessed the loans and interest receivables
and believes that no impairment provision is necessary in respect of
these balances.

The directors of the Company considered that the carrying amount
of loans and interest receivable recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate to fair value.

46,878 =

R2017F3A31H > HEERABEAERR
BEEYEERR -

REERWERZ JREMER - REESE
BEREEERHEVERLEERHEE®R
SHMEEERZEAEY - BRENRE
WEREFELABELFBRERERER
Eo

ARBEERR - BB AREMTE
WK 2 EUE RN SR E R A FER

4+

Eo
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22 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

fRa ISR MR ()

22 BAVEFTAEZRCEMEE

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx THAT

Equity securities classified as held for PEABEEEREZ
trading investments: BAFES
Listed equity securities in Hong Kong BB _ETHRAE 29,154 -
Financial assets designated at fair value EEARATHEFABERZ
through profit or loss: SREE
Unlisted fund JEFmES 13,620 -
42,774 -

Fair values of listed securities are determined with reference to
quoted market closing price.

The fair value of the investment in unlisted fund is determined
by reference to the net asset value ("NAV”) of the fund, which is
determined as at the close of business in the relevant market or
markets on each reporting date. The NAV is calculated based on the
value of the fund’s assets and/or investments quoted, listed, traded
or dealt on any stock exchange, commodities exchange or futures
made by reference to the exchange close price on the principal
stock exchange for such investments as at the close of business in
such place on the reporting date as of which such calculation is to
be made, minus the value of the fund'’s liabilities on the reporting
date.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are denominated
in Hong Kong dollar for the listed equity, and is denominated in
United States dollar for the unlisted fund.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are presented
within “operating activities” as part of changes in working capital in
the consolidated statement of cash flows.

The Group has placed redemption notice of the unlisted fund in
August 2017.

EHREHZ A FELETIGMBER T (E R

== °

FEMEGZREZAFENZEZESZ
BEEFE(EEFEDEE  MEEmSHE
EMEAMZEERRERTET - EEF
EVREF ETES 2 EEBERENE
MBS HPT - B BRI ER H R
B LW BEIARHZREZBEIE
SERAMEN LR RS A Szt
BEXFHERENIBEZF RS ZRS
WHERFLMESNBEANZAEE
B)FtE -

BAVEFABSRZ GCREEZRAE
ABTTRHE - FEETEESPASITAHE

BAFEFABRRZEREEFERFAR
ERERTEEES MO BB 2N
BEIA -

AEBDR2017F8AEHARIELTES
ZBEEEA o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
APV BMERMTE(E)

23 HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENT

Held-to-maturity investment comprise of:

23 FEEIHRE
BEZEBRERSE

2017 2016

HK$'000 HKS$'000

FExT FBT

Debt debenture BFESH 7,976 =
Analysed for reporting purposes as: BERENZoHAT :

Current asset MENEE 7,976 =

The Group’s held-to-maturity investment represented debt
debenture with maturity of 120 days at an interest rate of 9% per
annum.

Held-to-maturity investment was denominated in the United States

dollar and matured in May 2017. It is unsecured and the carrying
value approximates to its fair value.

24 SHARE CAPITAL

AEBEZFHEEINHREGEFHA/I208 K
FRIZR 9% 2 EFESF °

BFEEIBERE UAETFHE RN 201745 A
BE - SR ARmESE AL ERE -

24 R

Number of shares Share capital
R EE AT
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Authorised: JETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 BIREE0OETT
each 2 BB 1,000,000 1,000,000 10,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: BEERITEREE :
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 REFREE
each at beginning of the 00178 7T 2 EiBh%
year 319,521 266,321 3,195 2,663
Issuance of placing shares BITHR - 53,200 - 532
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 RERSFREE
each at end of the year 00187 2 E AR 319,521 319,521 3,195 3,195
Note: BfRE -

On 22 February 2016, the Company entered into a placing agreement with the placing
agents in relation to the placing for an aggregate of 53,200,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each of the Company at the placing price of HK$1.05 per share (the “Placing
Shares”). On 8 March 2016, the Placing Shares with par value of HK$0.01 each were
issued at a placing price of HK$1.05 per share to certain investors for aggregate placing
proceeds totalling HK$55,860,000, of which HK$532,000 were credited to share capital
and HK$55,328,000 were credited to share premium. Transaction costs in relation to
the placing of HK$1,495,000 were debited to share premium. These shares represented
approximately 16.65% of the enlarged issued share capital of the Company as at the
date of placing.

R2016F 28228 » ARRERERBEFETRE
W HEREEEA1.05Th 24 ££53,200,000
BEREBEOEITZARNB LB M ([EER
1) » W20165E3A8H » RABIABRIEE1 05752
RREERE TAIREERTERMEEE0 T2
ERRHD - BELEFIEA B 55860,0007T © HAE
#532,0007C B AR A + M #55,328,0007C B AR (5
H(E - BEILE 2 R S A 1,495,0007T T AR
DHE - ZSERERMNEE B HE AR RLEKR
EEITIRALI16.65% ©
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26

27

28
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fRa ISR MR ()

25 Bii&usR R AR

2017 2016
HK$'000 HKS'000
FET T
Finance income g e
Interest income on short-term bank deposits 52 ERSRTT IR R 2 B B 74 123
Finance costs BT AN
Interest expenses on bank borrowing RITEEZFERX - 419)
CAPITAL COMMITMENT 26 EREE
2017 2016
HK$'000 HKS'000
FET T
Capital expenditure contracted for but not provided B 5] A1B R AR A BI IS HRE
for in the consolidated financial statements: BfE 7 BARFRY ¢
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWMZE - WE & 192 385
OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 27 REHEETH
The Group as lessee KEBEREBEA

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had outstanding commitments
for the future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

Operating leases which expire:
Within one year
In the second to fifth year inclusive

The Group leases as offices and factories under non-cancellable
operating lease commitments. Leases are negotiated for an average
term of one to three years (2016: one to five years) and rentals are
fixed during the relevant lease period.

NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group has reclassified
HK$3,814,000 of prepayment to property, plant and equipment
upon the completion of renovation of the leasehold improvements.

28

2017938318 - AEBEERN 5 EHEE
M AR A E R AR ERE AL
REAEENT

KREHEREA TSR EW
—FR
F_EFLF(BREREMF)

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTExT THET
14,237 12,291
27,709 908
41,946 13,199

REBAKEHEAEEERNENHE °
BOBREFOFHR—E=F(2016: —%
hF) > MESRERERRNEETE -

HREXS

HIEP2016FE3ANEEE » AEERHE
1B FHAS TEREF 153,814,00078 7T 2 FE /I8
B EEYE - BEREE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
fRE I IRRMTE(E)

29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

29 BEALRS
(@) ETEEBABZHMH

(a) Key management compensation

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

THExT FAT

Salaries, wages and other benefits Fe  TEREMER 4,027 6,310
Pension costs — defined contribution BESNA —TEEETEI R

plans and social security costs e REERK AR 60 66

4,087 6,376

(b) Save as disclosed elsewhere on the consolidated financial

(b)

statements, the Group entered into the following material
related party transactions. These transactions are made of

terms mutually agreed by the related parties.

Related party relationship
BEATER

Entities which is significantly influenced by

Nature of transaction

RZMHE

Reimbursement of rental charges

Bir A MR EME S P -
REEETUTERFEALRS °
WERXZIIREZ ZEEATERR
FEZMEFRETAL

2017
HK$’000
FERT

2016
HK$'000
TAT

a key management who was also a major paid on behalf
shareholder of the Company during the
year ended 31 March 2016 2,987 2,965
RRB—RBFEERABRKITN etz
20165F3 A31 B IEFEEARR AN
—RIERRBEREATE N ER
Rental expenses
i 2,430 1,331
Recharge of administrative expenses
Y Bl 2 TR 2 639 773
Key management personnel of the Company  Consideration received from
who was also a major shareholder of the disposal of subsidiaries
Company during the year ended
31 March 2016
RRRA—ZEEEBASRKTINEE  HEMNBARKRIIRE
20165F3 31 B I FERERR AN
—HEERE - 55,665

Amounts due from/(to) related parties are unsecured, interest-

free and repayable on demand.

e (FEAT) BE & A L 50IA A MBI
# RS BARERER -



Annual Report 2017 & 2§ U'I 3 -:?:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fRa ISR MR ()

30 NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 30 MEREREBRMT
CASH FLOWS
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from disposals WZEERER Ei@i}ﬂ HeEWE . mENE
of property, plant and equipment comprise: HIGRIERES

Year ended 31 March

BZ3A31ALEE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHET AT
Net book value (note 15) BRTE S RE (BdaE15) 244 82
Loss on disposals of property, plant and HEWE - BER
equipment (note 9) fEsE (FeE9) (183) ©6)
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and HEME  BEK&
equipment REPTIFNIR 61 76
31 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 31 EEMBAF

Place of establishment/  Nominal value Percentage of
principal place of of issued share capital/ equity attributable
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital to the Group Principal activities

WEAR &R RYEY/ TELEHY BRTRE HEMEFEE rREREREEIL  TEXEE
Directly Indirectly
EE 583

Arcadia Jewellery Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$500,000 - 100%  Trading of jewellery products
EERMHERAA & TAAR500,0007 7T EEREEM
Man Sang Jewellery Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - 100%  Trading of pearl products
(Hong Kong) Limited
REKE (FB)ERAA Bt ERRIET EBYHER
Hui Bao Feng Jewellery PRC Registered capital - 100%  Purchasing and processing of
(Shenzhen) Limited 1S$2,000,000 pearls and assembling of
pearl jewellery
EELRE (R BRAF iR & R2,000000% 7T RERNIYHREHR
YHIE
Full Wealth Investment HongKong ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - 100%  Financial assets investment
Limited
EWREBBARLA Bt ERRIET REZK
Huge Mind Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - 100%  Money lending
RRRERRAT] Bt ERRIET fEE
The English names of certain subsidiaries represent the best effort by ETMEARNEE FHE AR - HEXH
the management of the Company in translating their Chinese names BOARRREREREAB NEEP LR

as they do not have official English names. BREMS -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
fRE I IRRMTE(E)

32 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 32 KRRz EEEBEBRRREEES
OF THE COMPANY
Balance sheet of the Company KAREEAER

As at 31 March

M3A31H
2017 2016
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHET T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EENAE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries NITB AT Z1EE 11,198 11,198
Current assets REEE
Prepayments and other receivables TEf B EL A WU IE 30 1,310
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NG Ee (@) 257,780 254,871
Cash and cash equivalents B hEREE 21,968 44,451
279,778 300,632
Current liabilities REAE
Other payables H A FETARTK 617 16
Net current assets REEEFE 279,161 300,616
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBEE 290,359 311,814
Net assets EEFE 290,359 311,814
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to equity holders 7~ B IR R FE (L i 25
of the Company
Share capital N 3,195 3,195
Reserves E (b) 287,164 308,619
Total equity R 290,359 311,814
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of RRAREEBERDEN2017F8H2SHEE
Directors on 25 August 2017 and was signed on its behalf. ESHETBHUTEFTRRES o
Lan Zhi Cheng Archambaud-Chao Percy Henry Junior
S
Chairman and Executive Director Executive Director

FIERATEF HITEF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M IRMTE(E)

32 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 32 ARRzEERBERRRERD
OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED) (&)
Notes: Bzt
(@) The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and repayable @) FEWHEB AT ZEAEERT 8BRS
on demand. kg o
(b) Reserves movement of the Company (b) /NG
Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
RAD R E E-) 2 At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SRCr SRer T
At 31 March 2015 7201563 A31H 280,483 (17,919 262,564
Issue of placing shares, net of share issue expenses ~ #E1TEC &R » HBRAH TR 53,833 = 53,833
Loss for the year REFEEHE = (7,778) (7,778)
At 31 March 2016 7201653 H31H 334316 (25,697) 308619
Loss for the year AEFEEE = (21,455) (21,455)

At 31 March 2017 72017563 A31H 334,316 (47,152) 287,164
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
fRE I IRRMTE(E)

33 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 33 EEfERER
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EERITHAZME
The remuneration of every director and the chief executive is EEFRITHRAE 2H2FHNT -

set out below:

For the year ended 31 March 2017: BZE2017F3A31HLEEFE ¢
Aggregate emoluments paid to or receivable by directors in WEREFE(Tin AL E] ANE L A]
respect of their services as directors, whether of the company or its X)) CIREEN TEFLEF RN
subsidiary undertaking FolES

Other

emoluments paid

or receivable

inrespect of

director's other

Remunerations servicesin

Employer's paid o connect with

contribution receivable the management

Estimated toa inrespect  of the affairs of

moneyvalue  retirement of accepting  the company or

Discretionary Housing of other benefit officeas itssubsidiary

Name of director Salary bonuses allowance benefits scheme director  undertakings

HEREE

LONES

EMEAREY

REEHEH BEE ZESRMEE

RftREz BN 1 e
g He O BERA  ARRE (HEMEE 5 vk | Afths 5t
HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
Tin TiEn Tin TiEn Tin Fin Tin Tén  TEn

Executive Directors gz
Mr.Lan Zhi Cheng (Chairman) B4 (X&)

(noted) (Mtzta) - 352 - - - 8 - - 360
Mr. Archambaud-Chao Percy  Archambaud-Chao Percy
Henry Junior (note d) Henry Junior £
(Witd) - 352 - - - 8 - - 360
Mr.Luk Siu Fung Mark (note ¢) - BEJks8 54 (Bizke) - 71 - - - 6 - - m
MrleeTzHangnotee)  ZFE5EA (Hfzte) - m - - - 6 - - m
M. Leung Alex (note f) RIS (W) - n - - - - - - 17

Ms.YanSauMan, Amy(noted)  BAZMA
Mr.Chen ZhiWei (oteb) RSB LE

(Hika) - 1,252 - - . n B B} 1,266
(GiED) - 28 - - - 2 - - 30
Non-Executive Director 3311785

Mr. Cheng Chung Hing (notea) BRHABR%E £ (FizFa) - - - - - - - - R

- 2,683 - - - I - - 2,687
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

33 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(CONTINUED)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

(Continued)

The remuneration of every director and the chief executive is

set out below: (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2017: (Continued)
Aggregate emoluments paid to or receivable by directors in
respect of their services as directors, whether of the company or its
subsidiary undertaking (Continued)

Name of director

Independent Non-Executive 41T

Directors
Mr.Pang Siu Yin (note d)
Mr. Lai Yat Yuen (note d)
Mr. Lee Kin Keung (note d)
Mr. Chan Chi Yuen (note e)
Mr.Fung Yat Sang (note ¢)
Mr. Lok Andrew (note.)
Mr.Tsui Franis King Chung

(note )

gz
FRERE (i
RRB (i
ST (i
BERLE (e
BRAERA (i)
Rk (i)
ESmis

(Bzkc)

)
)
)
)

Fees

g
HKS'000
TAR

Salary

ke
HK$'000

Discretionary
bonuses

s
HK$'000
TR

Housing
allowance

R
HK$'000

fRa ISR MR ()

33 EERN=ERER(E)

(a) ESRTHARME(HE)

Estimated
money value
of other
benefits

Hfp iz
CHEGH
HKS$000
TiEn

BEENTHRAR 2T

(#8)

BZE2017F3A31BLEEE : (&)
P REE(TimAals BN E L F]

RE)ZRECEN TELFXEFREKZ

il

Employer's
contribution
toa
retirement
benefit
scheme

e
ERGHEH
5

HK$'000
TRR

(%)

Remunerations
paid or
receivable

in respect

of accepting
office as
director

B4ES
i GO
Jez 3

HKS000

TiEn

Other
emoluments paid
or receivable
inrespect of
director's other
servicesin
connect with

the management
of the affairs of
the company or
its subsidiary
under takings
HEREE
ARREHE
EMEARER
BRI
Bfigifkz
Hftie
HK$'000

it
HK$'000
TR

81 - - - - - - - 81
81 - - - - - - - 81
81 - - - - - - - 81
62 - - - - - - - 62

2 - - - - - - - 2

2 - - - - - - - 2

2 - - - - - - - 2

965 268 - - " - B 1))
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
APV BMERMTE(E)

33 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 33 EEFERER(A)

(CONTINUED)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EERTHAZMNS (E)
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2016: BZ2016F3A31HLEFE :
Aggregate emoluments paid to or receivable by directors in MG BEE(TmA NG AN E LA
respect of their services as directors, whether of the company or its X)) ZIRBEEN FTEFLEF RN
subsidiary undertaking FoliEn

emo

Remunerations

contribution

mated t0a

Executive Directors yirEs
Ms.Yan SauMan, Amy (notea) A/ ME(fifta)

(Chief Brecutive Officer) ~ (f7BtE5%) - 1800 - - - 18 - - 1818
Mr.Chen ZhiWei (oteb) BS54 (fiEh) - 1000 100 - - 18 - - 1118

Non-ExecutiveDirector  FFE4/TES
Mr. Cheng Chung Hing (notea) EPHARSEA (Rizka) - 1750 - - 80 1 - - 260

Independent Non-Executive BI3HTES

Directors
Mr Fung YatSang (rote )~ B4 4 (Fkc) 0 - - - - - . . .
Mr.Look Andrew (noteq) BB 46 A (Hfc) PA| - - - - - . . 2
M T Francisking Chung R 564 (R k)

(note ) 20 - - - - - - - 20

660 4550 100 - 860 48 - - 6218
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

33 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(CONTINUED)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)
Notes:

(b)

The executive directors' emoluments shown above were mainly for their

services in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company

and the Group. The non-executive directors' emoluments shown above were

mainly for their services as directors of the Company or its subsidiaries. The

independent non-executive directors' emoluments shown above were mainly

for their services as directors of the Company.

(@)

Ms. Yan Sau Man, Amy and Mr. Cheng Chung Hing were appointed as
directors on 13 May 2014 and resigned on 10 December 2016.

Mr. Chen Zhi Wei resigned as a director on 11 April 2016.

Mr. Fung Yat Sang, Mr. Look Andrew and Mr. Tsui, Francis King Chung
were appointed as independent non-executive directors on 26
September 2014 and resigned on 10 December 2016.

Mr. Lan Zhi Cheng and Mr. Archambaud-Chao Percy Henry Junior were
appointed as directors, and Mr. Pang Siu Yin, Mr. Lai Yat Yuen and Mr.
Lee Kin Keung were appointed as independent non-executive directors
on 19 November 2016.

Mr. Luk Siu Fung Mark and Mr. Lee Tsz Hang were appointed as directors
and Mr. Chan Chi Yuen was appointed as independent non-executive

director on 20 December 2016.

Mr. Leung Alex was appointed as director on 11 April 2016.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, Mr. Cheng Chung Hing (who
is also a director of a subsidiary of the Group) agreed to waive his
emoluments of HK$2,081,000 voluntarily (2016: HK$1,250,000).

Other benefits include leave pay and insurance premium. Other benefits
consist of approximate ratable value and rent of the properties for

accommodation and other related expenses.

Directors’ retirement benefits and
termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any retirement
benefits or termination benefits during the year (2016: Nil).

e M IRMTE(E)

33 EERN=ERER(E)

(a) ESRTHARME(HE)

(b)

B -

EXFrBITEEZ HIMERAR KSR

f#t

ZAES

ARARRARBEEBERER R -

EXFrAIERITE R 2 H M E R RN EE
RARBREWNB AR ERRMZ R -
EXFrAEIE T E S 2 HIMEEHRNE
FERARAERAIRHEZ R -

(a)

AT/ NE R BN S R 20144F 5 A
BEHEZEAESIHN2016F12H10
HEHE -

BREEBELEN2016F4 A1 BEHEE
$o

BRERE  EREEREYFEE
R2014F9 A26 AER T BB IEATT
BEEWMR2016F12 A 108HTE ©

R2016F 11 198 » BEWMEER
Archambaud-Chao Percy Henry Juniort
HEZERNTES  ZhEEE
iR EERFREEERZERS
SIFMITES -

R2016F12 8208 » BEIKEXERST
FTHAEREZTAHTES  BEER
RAERTABYINTES -

R ER2016F4811BEZTA
YITEE -

HZE2017F3A31 B IEFE - EMESL
& B & B R E H B € 2,081,000 7T
(2016%F © 1,250,000/ 7T) °

HipmiemashrikrRess -
HipgfemEEmE 2 MORRE
mAAEREE REMARER -

EEZRNENERBER

BTSN EE BRI BT
R RAEF kB EF (20164 « £) ©

T
e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
fRE I IRRMTE(E)

33 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company did not
pay consideration to any third parties for making available
directors’ services (2016: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans

and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and connected
entities with such directors

During the year ended 31 March 2017, there were no loans,
quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in favour of
Directors, or controlled bodies corporate by and connected
entities with such directors (2016: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements, no
significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Company’s business to which the Company was a
party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year (2016: Nil).

(c)

(d)

(e)

33_ EERN=ENAER ()

BERHEERBMEAE=H
REZRE
REZE2017F3831BIEFE - AR A
WESEREESEREMATHRHE=
A HRE Q65 : &) -

BRUES  EE2XEHE
ErEEEBRARBZACZE
o EERREMRZ 2ER

REZE2017F3831BHIEFE - KRF]
SRR AL 2B A A BEEERT S LA
EE  BEZIEMZEREEERE
BSHAZER - EERREMRZS
ZHE(2016%F + ) ©

BEENRS - RERENF 2
ERER
BERAMBRRMEEES - FHEK
FAFERN - ARRLERFERS
RAGEZEBMARRZEFTHE
SAEEEFREEARDECERER
5~ TR AHI (20165 © &) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

34 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements,
the following event took place subsequent to 31 March 2017.

On 18 April 2017, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with the vendors, pursuant to which the vendors have
conditionally agreed to sell and the purchaser, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, has conditionally agreed to purchase
the sale shares, representing 33% of the entire issued share capital
of a target company at aggregate consideration of HK$79,200,000,
which shall be satisfied by the payment of the cash consideration
of HK$3,500,000 and the allotment and issue of 19,868,766
consideration shares of the Company in the aggregate value of
HKS$75,700,000 at the issue price of HK$3.81 per consideration share
to the vendors. The transaction was completed on 10 May 2017.
Upon completion, the target company has become an associate
company of the Group. The share capital of the Company has
increased from HK$3,195,000 to HK$3,394,000.

e M IRMTE(E)

34 KEHRSE

ARG DS RR M I o TSN - AT E
THRA2017483 A31HE 34 -

R2017F47188 » AEBEREFFVER
W Bt BEAEKGRELE  mME
H(ARRAR—HE2EWBAR) BIEHERE
BEHEEROD BERBERAREZIHDET
REZR33%) » #BAR(E 579,200,000 7T - E &
FERAE H S FH S RE3,500,0008 T IA &
BRTEBRAERMD3I8E Tl % KT
42{8 /75,700,000 7T #919,868,766 I X (B A%
MARNER - ZRFHER2017FE5 8108 5%
oo EXE - BEEARE K ARE B/
ENTA) o AN EIRRANE 3,195,000/ LIE N E
3,394,000/ 7T °
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EFEMERE

RESULTS ¥E

For the year ended 31 March

BZE3A31BLFE

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000

FHERT FHT TAT TAT FHAT

(Note a) (Note a) (Note a) (Note b) (Note b)

(Bfata) (BfzEa) (PffsEa) (Pff3Eb) (PffED)

Revenue WA 212,232 210,019 270,709 268,473 261,411
(Loss)/profit before income tax BT SRiAT (E51) A (24,282) (10,858) 16,049 32,024 16,398
Income tax credit (expense) FriefiEe(Fx) 396 (82) (5,993) (2,428) (2,121)

(Loss)/profit attributable to equity holders 7K /A &I IX R &

of the Company for the year IHEE(BER),%h (23,886) (10,940) 10,056 29,596 14,277
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
At 31 March
M3A31AR
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FRT  T#ET  T#x TER TER
(Note a) (Note a) (Note a) (Note b) (Note b)
(KfeEa) (BfsEa) (PBfEa) (PFF3Eb) (PfFED)
Total assets BEE 313,238 339,303 358,494 492,120 747,647
Total liabilities FEy=R 23,153 25,646 90,896 93,259 383,081
Equity attributable to equity holders RARIREIE
of the Company bz 290,085 313,657 267,598 398,861 364,566
Notes: ffsE -
(a) The financial figures were extracted from the consolidated financial statements in the (a) WIS BT TSR B AN F AR S ISRk o

annual report.

(b)  The financial figures were extracted from the Listing Document dated 30 September (b)  WEEFEHEEE 201459 30 ARELA) TS F -
2014.
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